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KGFT is pleased to present 
it’s first integrated report 
and aims to improve its 
disclosure year -on-year, 
having taken a three-year 
phased approach to fully 
implementing its integrated 
report.

About this Report
The KZN Growth Fund Trust (KGFT – herein also referred 
to as ‘the Trust’) is pleased to present its integrated report 
covering the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015, which for 
the first time has been presented on an integrated basis. 
The report aims to give a comprehensive account of KGFT’s 
strategy, governance, performance and future prospects 
within the context of its external environment in order to 
demonstrate its ability to create sustainable value in the 
long run. 

In preparing the report, management considered the 
guidelines on integrated reporting as provided by the 
International Integrated Reporting Committee (IIRC) as 
well as the King Report on Corporate Governance for 

South Africa, 2009 (King III). As KGFT continues its journey 
into integrated reporting, it aims to improve its disclosure year 
-on-year, having taken a three-year phased approach to fully 
implementing its integrated report, with a particular focus on 
sustainability reporting in line with the guidelines of the Global 
Reporting Initiative (GRI 3.1). 

Reporting Principles and Assurance 
KGFT’s Annual Financial Statements (AFS) have been 
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and the principles of the Public Finance 
Management Act, No. 1 of 1999 (PFMA) as it relates to Annual 
Financial Statements. There have been no restatements 
of financial information in respect of prior periods. KGFT 
receives external assurance from the Auditor-General of 
South Africa on the fair representation of its Annual Financial 
Statements. KGFT has not yet obtained assurance on other 
non-financial matters addressed in this report, but will work 
towards this as a part of its phased approach.

Forward-looking Information 
Certain of the matters discussed in this report about KGFT’s 
future performance, including, without limitation, future 
financial performance, strategies, prospects, consequences 
and all other statements that are not purely historical, 
constitute ‘forward-looking statements’. Such forward-
looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, 
which could cause actual results to differ materially from those 
anticipated. Such statements are based on management’s 
beliefs as well as assumptions made by and information 
currently available to management. 

Materiality
The principle of materiality has been applied in determining 
the content and extent of disclosure in the Integrated Report. 
In identifying those matters that are material, a wide range 
of resources were consulted, including KGFT’s corporate 
plan and strategy, the outcomes of engagements with 
stakeholders, reports submitted and produced for the Board 
of Trustees and sub-committees, the key risks identified 
during the risk management process, and various policies 
and regulations applicable to KGFT.

Approval by the Board
KGFT’s Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for 
reviewing and recommending the integrated report and the 
AFS to the Board of Trustees for approval. The Board of 
Trustees is further supported by KGFT’s management who 
convened internal teams with the required knowledge and 
skill to undertake the reporting process in order to deliver 
KGFT’s objectives. The Board has approved the integrated 
report and believes that it addresses all material issues and 
fairly presents the performance of KGFT. Internal and external 
audits provide further assurance on the effectiveness of 
KGFT’s risk management of material issues.

Ms Dudu Hlatshwayo
Chairman
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MEC’s Foreword

The KZN Growth Fund (the Fund) (operated by the Trust) 
was established in 2008 as one of our key strategic 
initiatives to foster empowerment and economic growth in 
the KwaZulu-Natal Province (KZN – herein also referred to 
as ‘the Province’). 

The Fund was structured as a unique public-private 
partnership (PPP) between EDTEA, SBSA and DBSA 
until 31 March 2015. The main objective of the Fund is to 

finance medium to large projects that create jobs and accelerate 
the economic development of KwaZulu-Natal while at the same 
time promoting Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment 
(B-BBEE) and reducing inequality. 

In order to improve the functioning of the Fund, we decided in 
December 2012, in consultation with the various stakeholders, to 
restructure the operating model of the Fund into a streamlined, 
unitary structure reporting directly to the EDTEA. The new 
structure became effective in April 2014. 

The significantly improved financial performance for the 
2014/2015 financial year is a testament of the fruit and benefits 
of the restructuring process that became effective in 2014/2015. 

The Fund has aligned its mandate, investment policy and service 
delivery plan to the Provincial Growth and Development Plan 
(PGDP). The Fund plays a pivotal role in providing finance to 
private sector projects that will create jobs and unlock economic 
potential. 

The Fund had to commit all of its capital (R787.5m) by August 
2015, which was known as the availability period, and the 

EDTEA as well as the Trust had to ensure that post the availability 
period, the Fund does not become just a collecting agency but 
also expands its business. As a result, an evolution strategy was 
approved that delivers a roadmap post the availability period. 

The evolution strategy that will be implemented in the 2015/2016 
financial year, entails the Trust adopting an en-commandite 
partnership structure (also known as a limited liability 
partnership) as its new funding model. In order to migrate to 
this new model, the Fund needed to unencumber the assets/
security of the Trust. 

This could only be done through exiting the current Lenders 
of the Trust (DBSA and SBSA) from the current structure. 
Hence, this necessitated the early cancellation of the Lenders’ 
respective commitments and settlements of their current 
exposure. Following the exit of the Lenders, the Trust will be 
offering both debt and equity products. 

The structural changes of the Fund are aimed at growing its 
asset base and increasing its positive impact on job creation, 

Mr MiChAEl MAbuyAKhulu (Mpp)
MEC FoR EConoMIC DEvElopMEnt, 
touRIsM AnD EnvIRonMEntAl AFFAIRs The significantly improved financial 

performance for the 2014/2015 
financial year is a testament of 
the fruits and benefits of the 
restructuring process which 
became effective in 2014/2015. 
The structural changes of the Fund 
are aimed at growing its asset base 
and increasing its positive impact on 
job creation, B-BBEE and reducing 
inequality.

2
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Mr Michael Mabuyakhulu, MPP 
MEC for Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental Affairs

B-BBEE and reducing inequality. We believe that the mandate 
and strategies of the Trust reflect and encompass the current 
government policy priority objectives. 

I would like to thank the Chairman of the Board of Trustees and 
their respective fellow Trustees and independent committee 
members for strategically guiding the Trust to a higher level 
of growth and performance in the last year. We have every 
confidence that the current Trust’s leadership, at both the Board 
and Executive Management levels, have the requisite expertise 
in achieving the challenging task of unlocking the significant 
economic development potential in the Province through 
investments in viable private sector projects. 

The Department will continue to support and guide the Trust in 
all its future business undertakings to ensure its success.

I would like to express my gratitude to the Lenders for partnering 

with the KZN government in the space of project finance. This 
is testimony that in order for us to unlock the full economic 
potential of our beautiful country, the public and private sector 
will have to join hands and work together.

I look forward to working together with all the stakeholders 
and partners to transform the Province into a sustainable and 
liveable province. 
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Chairman’s Report

It is indeed an honour for me to present this report for the 
2014/2015 financial year on behalf of the Board. The Trust has 
been in existence for the past seven years. It is impressive 
to say that the year 2014/2015 has seen the implementation 
of strategic plans culminating in the restructure of the 
Fund, which was concluded in March 2014 and became 
effective on 1 April 2014. The restructure brought significant 
changes in the simplification of the operating model and 
rationalisation of operating costs. The 2014/2015 financial 
results provide an overview of the Trust’s performance 
against predetermined objectives, as set out in its Corporate 
Plan at the beginning of the financial year.

Historical Context

The Trust restructuring, which was completed in March 
2014, resulted in a streamlined, unitary and more cost-
efficient structure reporting directly to the EDTEA. 
The upcoming end of the availability period and 

limitations arising from the security structure of the Trust from 
arrangements with Lenders was a cause for concern regarding 
the future of the fund, which would have resulted in the Trust 
becoming a collecting agency post its availability period. It has 
been the intention of the Trust to ensure that it is supported by a 
funding model that will ensure perpetuity and that will allow the 
Trust to also expand its business to achieve its mandate of job 
creation and development of the KZN economy.

Situational Analysis
The prevailing macro-economic conditions, characterised 
by the weakening Rand, widening current account deficit, 

high unemployment rate and capital outflows, continue to 
pose significant challenges to the South African economy. 
The country’s trade deficit took an unexpected turn for the 
worse in October 2014 as oil imports surged, pushing total 
imports up by almost 18% month-by-month while exports 
fell by 1.8% month-by-month. The current account deficit 
averaged around 5.7% of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in 
2014 and is expected to narrow gradually to just about 5% 
of GDP in both 2015 and 2016.

Annual Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation dropped to 
5.8% in November 2014 from 5.9% in October 2014. Petrol 
and food prices, which are key drivers of changes in the CPI, 
both showed lower annual inflation rates. The SA Reserve 
Bank Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) left interest rates 
unchanged at 5.75% in November 2014, citing an improved 
inflation outlook, brought about by lower global oil and food 
prices, to allow a battered economy some room to breathe. 

Ms DuDu hlATshwAyo 
ChAIRMAn

The restructure brought significant 
changes in the simplification 
of the operating model and 
rationalisation of operating 
costs. The 2014/2015 financial 
results provide an overview of 
the Trust’s performance against 
predetermined objectives, as set 
out in its Corporate Plan at the 
beginning of the financial year. 

3
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High interest rates in South Africa will retard growth in gross 
fixed capital formation as demand for debt capital by corporates 
and project promoters subsides due to affordability concerns. 
While the increase in interest rates is a negative development, 
it may also be an opportunity for the Trust to advance loans 
at competitive rates relative to other lending institutions. The 
Trust’s cost of funding is less affected by increases in interest 
rates as its capital obtained from Government is at a zero 
cost. The Trust also has a competitive edge over commercial 
banks as it is not subject to Basel III requirements. 

I am confident that the developing environment, backed by 
the impact of the restructure of the Fund, will contribute to 
the successful implementation of the strategies and effective 
operations of KGFT. 

Future Strategy 
On behalf of KGFT, the Trustees and executive management met 
with the MEC to discuss the Fund, which was drawing to a close 
(end of the availability period) in August 2015. Having received 
a positive response from the MEC and the Head of Department, 
KGFT was able to engage in extensive consultations with market 
experts and subsequently embarked on the evolution strategy 
that has been approved by the MEC. The strategy involves 
prepayment of the existing debt facilities and engaging with 
potential investors under a new en-commandite partnership 
model. 

During the course of 2014/2015, a number of vacancies in key 
positions were filled during the year. KGFT will also look to fill 

additional positions related to the new product offerings (equity 
and guarantee products) and ensure that a rigorous training plan 
is implemented to ensure that skills within the entity support the 
implementation of the evolution strategy. 

Appreciation 
I would like to thank the MEC for the EDTEA, Mr Michael 
Mabuyakhulu, for entrusting the Board with the responsibility 
of leading the Trust at this important juncture in its lifecycle. 
It is a real privilege to be able to serve the KZN Province and 
be given a platform through which to contribute towards its 
economic development. I would also like to thank the CEO 
and his team, who have put a tremendous amount of effort 
into ensuring that the restructuring process was a success 
and ensuring that the 2015/2016 evolution strategy was 
approved. Lastly, I would like to thank my fellow Board 
members for accepting the huge responsibility and challenge 
that lies before the Board in ensuring that the Trust realises 
its mission ‘To provide competitive and innovative project 
finance to private sector investments that unlock growth 
opportunities in KwaZulu-Natal for a better future.’ 

Ms Dudu Hlatshwayo 
Chairman

South African Shipyards – Tug-Building in Progress.
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report of the Chief 
Executive officer

Mr siDDiq ADAM

ChIEF ExECutIvE oFFICER

4

Operations and Performance
The CEO is pleased to report that the 2014/2015 financial 
year was a success in view of turnaround strategies that 
the Trust implemented following the restructuring of the 
legal and governance model that was finalised in March 
2014. The positive financial results have been attributed 
to the trustees and management of KGFT deliberating on: 
rewarding directions for the future survival of KGFT aimed 
at meeting its key strategic goals of creating sustainable 
economic development; job creation; black economic 
empowerment; reducing inequality in KZN; as well as 
alignment to the KZN 2012-2030 Provincial Growth and 
Development Plan (PGDP). 

The Trust now has a unitary structure that is more 
streamlined and efficient. This unitary structure has 
resulted in a reduction of the annual cost base of the 
Trust from R46m in 2013/2014 to R28m in 2014/2015. 

In addition, less time has been spent in corporate administration, 
resulting in a focus on the core business of the Trust to ensure 
that it improves its service delivery. 

During the course of the 2014/2015 financial year, service 
delivery efficiencies have been evidenced as the Trust 
approved four projects totalling R373.4m. Disbursement of 
R290m has already been made to three of these projects 
during 2014/2015. The Trust has disbursed a total of R480.7m 
to four projects in the telecommunications, transport and 
logistics and manufacturing sectors.    
 

A focused marketing strategy was developed and 
implemented following the relaunch of KGFT brand in August 
2014. The outcome of the promotion to the target market is 
currently seen in the increase of the deal pipeline and steady 
growth of the portfolio.

Aftercare activities on the disbursed projects continued 
during the year. The impairment provision of R30.1m that 
was raised on one of the projects in prior years has been 
reversed as at 31 March 2015. This was as a result of the 
project successfully concluding two major contracts during 
the 2014/2015 financial year, which resulted in a significant 
improvement in the balance sheet and profitability forecasts 
of the Project. The other projects continue to perform in line 
with their contractual arrangements. 

The restructure of the Trust facilitated the ability to attract 
suitable candidates to fill pivotal positions of Chief 

In terms of the approved evolution 
strategy, the Trust intends to set 
up an en-commandite (or limited 
liability) partnership to manage 
future funds.The evolution strategy 
of the Trust is aimed at growing 
KGFT asset base, enlarging its 
product offering and improving its 
positive impact on job creation, 
B-BBEE and reducing inequality.
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Investment Officer (CIO), which has been vacant since May 
2012, Legal Risk and Compliance Officer (LRCO), vacant 
since November 2013, and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), 
which became vacant in March 2014. The CEO and the full 
executive team supported by additional human resources 
employed during 2014/2015 were able to bolster the project 
origination, appraisal, disbursements and aftercare. It is 
expected that the 2015/2016 financial year will be more 
exciting in achieving the corporate objectives of the Trust.

Strategy
In order to address the challenges arising from the limited 
product offering, the post-disbursement challenges and 
limitations arising from the security structure within the 
current model, a revised model of an en-commandite 
partnership, is considered the preferred model for the Trust. 

In terms of the approved evolution strategy, the Trust intends 
to set up an en-commandite (or limited liability) partnership 
to manage future funds. The MEC further approved the 
prepayment of the Lenders of the existing debt facilities and 
engagement with potential investors under a new partnership 
agreement. The adoption of the partnership model will 
enable the Trust to manage both the current Debt Fund 
and a new Equity and Guarantee Fund. By providing equity, 
projects that have been denied funding by the Trust due to 
lack of equity will now benefit, as funding transactions will 
be completed. The evolution strategy of the Trust is aimed at 
growing KGFT asset base, enlarging its product offering and 
improving its positive impact on job creation, B-BBEE and 
reducing inequality.

The setup of the en-commandite partnership is currently in 
progress and it is expected to be implemented by 1 April 
2016. The new structure resulting from partnership will, 
without doubt, change the status of KGFT and it will need to 
register as a Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) entity 
in due course.

Appreciation
The CEO would like to express his gratitude to the Chairman 
as well as all the Trustees of the Board and independent 
Committee Members for their unwavering support and 
strategic guidance. The CEO acknowledges the Head of 
Department for EDTEA, Mr Golding, and Head of Entity 
Oversight, Ms Mapisa, for their support during the year. 
The CEO acknowledges the Lenders for their guidance and 
support through the years. 

Last but not least, the CEO acknowledges all his staff who 
have contributed tremendously to the Trust’s development – 
this effort does not go unnoticed. As the Trust moves into the 
new era, the CEO hopes that staff who remain will realise the 
benefits of all their hard work and tireless effort.

Mr Siddiq Adam
Chief Executive Officer
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The Trust was established to unlock the Province’s economic 
potential through the use of flexible developmental finance, 
taking risk where traditional financial institutions are failing 
the funding requirements of viable business projects. 

Vision
Financing growth.

Mission
To provide competitive and innovative project finance to 
private sector investments that unlock growth opportunities 
in KwaZulu-Natal for a better future. 

Mandate
To support sustainable growth in KZN by financing private 
sector projects that drive economic success, stimulate 
job creation, promote broad-based black economic 
empowerment (B-BBEE) and reduce inequality.

Values
The Trust’s values are:
• Innovative 
• Entrepreneurial
• Knowledgeable 
• Reliable

The KwaZulu-Natal Growth Fund Trust was set up in 2008 
as an initiative of the KZN Government’s Department of 
Economic Development and Tourism (DEDT), currently 
the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental Affairs (EDTEA) to administer the KZN 
Growth Fund. 

The Fund, which became operational in 2009, finances 
medium to large-scale sustainable private sector 
projects throughout the KZN province. This initiative 
is a first of its kind in South Africa, aimed at creating 

sustainable economic development, job creation and B-BBEE, 
and reducing inequality in KZN. The Department of Economic 
Development, Tourism and Environment Affairs (EDTEA) is the 
sole beneficiary of the Trust. The Fund was set up as a closed 
project finance debt fund, structured as a unique public-private 
partnership between the Provincial Government, Standard Bank 
South Africa (SBSA), Infrastructure Finance Corporation (INCA) 
and the Development Bank of South Africa (DBSA). The capital 
contribution from EDTEA, together with the facility from the 
Lenders, resulted in an initial fund size of R1 087.5bn (DEDT 
– R362.5m; INCA – R300m; DBSA – R225m; SBSA – R200m). 
However, due to a change in its business model, INCA exited 
the Fund in November 2013, which resulted in a reduced Fund 
size of R787.5m. 

The product offering of the Fund includes Senior and 
Mezzanine debt. The Fund finances projects ranging from a 
minimum of R30m and may consider funding up to R200m in 
size. Projects requiring amounts over the upper limit are co-
funded with other financial institutions. It focuses on strategic 
infrastructure and economic sectors such as: 

• Transport and logistics;
• Manufacturing;
• Telecommunications;
• Power and energy;
• Health and education infrastructure;
• Agro-processing;
• Mining and mineral beneficiation;
• Tourism; and 
• Any other sector that may promote the objectives of the 

Fund, provided that it satisfies the investment policy of 
the Fund.

The Trust was established to 
unlock the provinces economic 
potential through the use of flexible 
developmental finance, taking 
risk where traditional financial 
institutions are failing the funding 
requirements of viable business 
projects. 
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Strategic Goals
The Trust’s strategic goals are as follows:
• To maintain effective corporate governance and efficient 

financial administration; and
• To identify and finance (or co-invest in) viable projects 

that will promote economic growth and job creation in 
KZN as well as promote B-BBEE. 

Strategic Objectives
The strategic objectives of the Trust are:
• To grow the assets under management by the Trust;
• To obtain and maintain an unqualified audit opinion; 
• To fully commit all available funds to viable projects; and
• To ensure appropriate portfolio management and 

aftercare so as to strive towards zero default and long- 
term sustainable growth of the Trust. 

To achieve the strategic objectives of the Fund, the Trust has 
adopted the following strategies:
• To unencumber Government’s capital while giving effect 

to an en-commandite partnership;
• To open up new funds under the partnership that can 

offer competitive financing products to attract private 
participation; 

• To build long-term relationships with other Development 
Finance Institutions (DFIs) and lending institutions to 
cross-refer and co-finance projects and build on the PPP 
model; 

• To further implement the comprehensive marketing 
strategy;

• To adequately resource and maintain the necessary 
human capital and skills in the Trust by offering market 
related benefits; and

• To implement sound policies, procedures, and systems of 
internal controls to ensure good corporate governance.

By implementing the above strategies, the Trust will be able 
to achieve its strategic objectives, hence establishing a 
successful track record and a reputation for effective delivery. 
The strategy of the Trust will be driven by a single-minded 
goal of developmental finance and growing the assets under 
management. 
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6 our leadership
BOARd OF TRuSTeeS

exeCuTIVe COMMITTee

Ms Delia Jay Professor Imtiaz Vally Ms Phumzile Langeni

Mr Siddiq Adam
Chief Executive Officer

Mr Aubrey Shabane
Chief Investment Officer

Mr Ismail Abdoola
Chief Financial Officer

Ms Dudu Hlatshwayo
Chairman

Mr Helge Switala
Deputy Chairman

Mr Siddiq Adam
Chief Executive Officer

Ms Zodwa Mbele
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Governance structure7

Chief Investment Officer
• Projects
• Marketing and Advertising

Chief Financial Officer
• Finance and Admin
• IT
• Human Resources

Legal, Risk and 
Compliance Officer
• Legal
• Risk
• Compliance
• Governance

Investment 
Committee

Audit and Risk 
Committee

Human Resources 
and Remuneration 

Committee

Chief Executive Officer

KZN Growth Fund Trust
Board of Trustees

department of economic 
development, Tourism and 

Environmental Affairs

KwaZulu-Natal
Provincial Government

• Stakeholder Communications
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investment 
Committee Report

8

Socio-economic environment 
Most recent economic indicators confirm that the domestic 
economic conditions improved moderately over the third 
quarter of 2014. The growth rate for the first half of 2014 
was revised up to 1.6% from 1.3%.The recovery was mainly 
driven by faster growth in finance, real estate and business 
services as well as wholesale, retail and motor trade, 
catering and accommodation, with the former propped up 
by increased activity in the financial markets and the latter 
supported by moderate recovery in household confidence 
and spending. Growth in value-added by agriculture also 
accelerated further in quarter three, boosted by a record 
field crop season and higher production in animal farming.

Unemployment and labour relations continue to pose 
challenges for the country. With almost 25% of the 
population (and 65% of young people) without work, 
unemployment is South Africa’s largest challenge. 

Higher interest rates in South Africa will retard growth in gross 
fixed capital formation as the demand for debt capital by 
corporates and project promoters subsides due to affordability 
concerns.

KZN is the second largest economy in the country and 
contributes circa 16.6% towards the SA’s GDP after Gauteng. 
Manufacturing is the largest industry and other key industries 
include agriculture, transport and logistics, tourism, finance 
and business services. The KZN economy has grown from 
circa R270 billion in 2010 to R347 billion in 2014. The 
economy, however, continues to grow at a sluggish rate in 
line with South Africa’s global partners, as well as the rest of 
the country’s provincial economies. 

The Province posted an economic growth of 1.5% in the 
second quarter of 2014 compared to slow growth of 1.4% in 
the first quarter. However, the provincial economy continued 
to perform above the national average. On a year-on-year 
basis, the provincial economy slowed to 1.7% in the second 
quarter of 2014. The Reserve Bank’s forecasts for growth in 
2015 was revised downwards to 3.3%. The Government of 
KZN recognises that investment is critical to the growth of the 

provincial economy and aims to ensure that an environment 
conducive for investment to thrive is created. 

Investment Committee (‘IC’) Constitution
The constitution of the committee is included in the 
corporate governance section below. The members of this 
Committee, who are all experienced in project finance and 
qualified in related fields, made a significant contribution 
towards building the capacity within the Fund. A word of 
gratitude to all the members who consistently applied their 
collective minds to investment proposals and through their 
commitment and dedication, capacitated the Fund.

Review of the 2014/2015 Financial Year
The IC is satisfied to report that despite the sluggish 
economy that has affected the viability of many businesses, 
the IC was able to approve four projects (including one 
refinanced project) that were presented at FAR stage during 
the 2014/2015 financial year with a total amount of R373.4m, 
of which R290m has been disbursed. The status of the 
portfolio categorised into various stages of the project cycle 
is as follows:

The IC was able to approve four 
projects (including a refinanced 
project) that were presented at 
FAR stage during the 2014/2015 
financial year with a total amount 
of R373.4m, of which R290m has 
been disbursed.
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Stage of Projects No. Funding
Requested

(Rm)

Funding
Approved

(Rm)

Funding
Disbursed

(Rm)

Job 
Opportunities

In implementation/Disbursed 4 373.4 373.4 290 6 611

Approved/Pre-financial Close 1 63.4 63.4 - 300

Projects in appraisal 0 - - - -

Investment Leads 16 1 293 - - TBC

TOTAL 21 1 729.8 436.8 290 6 911
         

Projects in implementation are creating 6 611 job opportunities. 
Should all projects proceed as intended, a total of almost 6 911 
employment opportunities will be created. All projects in the 
portfolio are currently performing and no provisions for doubtful 
debts are held at 31 March 2015. Due to improved financial 
performance exhibited by one of the project companies 
financed during the 2014/2015 financial year, following the 
implementation of a significant contract, the release of the 
impairment provision of R30.1m previously held was approved. 
Management of KGFT was instrumental in facilitating that 
this distressed company overcame some of the challenges 
that delayed the signing of the contract, thereby protecting 
the Fund’s existing exposure but also safeguarding existing 
jobs. The IC members continue to oversee the monitoring of 
all projects closely to ensure that early signs of distress are 
identified and appropriately managed.   
 

Notwithstanding the subdued economic outlook, the IC is 
looking forward to a year in which the project pipeline will 
grow. The outcome of the restructuring resulted in the re-

launch of KGFT brand in August 2014 and culminated 
in significant operational cost savings, reduction of the 
weighted average cost of capital, streamlined governance 
and reporting structures, new appointments of professional 
staff, introduction of new product offerings and a renewed 
energy and focus to implement the mandate of the Fund. 

Forward-looking Statement
The IC is cautiously optimistic that the competitive pricing 
and higher risk appetite jointly with a greater awareness 
in the market of the Fund will improve the identification of 
suitable projects in the next year, a number of which will be 
converted into investments in the 2015/2016 financial year.

Mr H. Switala
Chairman: Investment Committee
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operating Environment9

Global Overview
Growth in the global economy continued at a moderate and 
uneven pace during 2014, as the extended recovery process 
from the 2008 global financial crisis was still saddled with 
unfinished post-crisis adjustments. Global recovery was 
further hampered by new challenges, including a number 
of unexpected shocks, such as the heightened geopolitical 
conflicts in various areas of the world. Overall, the global 
economy did not have a stellar year as growth of world gross 
product (WGP), reported by the United Nations (UN) at 2.6%, 
is marginally better than the growth of 2.5% registered in 
2013, but well below the pace of expansion enjoyed over an 
extended period up to 2008.

A prominent feature for major developed countries 
during 2014 has been the erratic movements in 
their quarterly GDP growth rates. Growth rates in 
developing countries and economies in transition 

became more divergent during 2014, as most of these economies 
experienced various country-specific challenges, including 
structural imbalances, infrastructural bottlenecks, increased 
financial risks and ineffective macroeconomic management, as 
well as geopolitical and political tensions.

Growth picked up moderately in sub-Saharan Africa (SSA) 
in 2014, to an average of about 4.5% compared with 4.2% 
in 2013. 

The fall in oil prices dominated the end of the year, reducing 
energy prices and boosting macroeconomic conditions in oil 
importing countries. The fall in oil prices may go down as 
the single most important development of 2014. Sadly, 2014 
will probably be remembered too for the rise in geopolitical 
risk, characterised by unrest in the Ukraine, the annexure of 
Crimea by Russia and increased Islamic State activities.

South African developments
Growth in South Africa, the continent’s second biggest 
economy, has been lacklustre in 2014. The South African 
economy grew by 1.4% in 2014, afflicted by protracted 
strikes, low business confidence, electricity constraints and 
a depreciating Rand. South Africa also had to grapple with 
a drop in global trade demand, led by easing demand in 
commodities. These events, arguably impacted negatively 
on credit extension to the business sector.

economic Outlook
Global growth will receive a boost from lower oil prices. This 
boost is expected to be more than offset by negative factors, 
including investment weakness as adjustment to diminished 
expectations about medium-term growth continues in many 
advanced and emerging market economies.

Global growth in 2015 and 2016 is projected by the International 
Monetary Fund (IMF) to be at 3.5% and 3.7%, respectively. 

Among the developed economies, the economy of the 
United States (US), after some erratic fluctuation in 2014, 
is expected to exceed 3% in 2015-2016, with domestic 
demand supported by lower oil prices, more moderate fiscal 
adjustment, and continued support from an accommodative 
monetary policy stance, despite the projected gradual rise in 
interest rates. The recent dollar appreciation is projected to 
reduce net exports.

In the Euro region, activity is projected to be supported 
by lower oil prices, further monetary policy easing, a more 
neutral fiscal policy stance, and the recent Euro depreciation. 

In South Africa, growth although 
muted is on the cards in 2015. 
Lower oil prices and a rise in 
domestic demand could power 
a modest rebound for South 
Africa’s economy in 2015. Lower 
oil prices are helping to contain 
inflation, even as the rand 
depreciated 10% against the US 
dollar during the year. A lower 
rate of inflation will in turn be a 
boost to consumer finances. 



17

INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

These factors will be offset by weaker investment prospects, 
partly reflecting the impact of weaker growth in emerging 
market economies on the export sector, and annual growth 
is projected at 1.2% in 2015 and 1.4% in 2016. 

In emerging market and developing economies, growth is 
projected, by the IMF, to remain broadly stable at 4.3% in 
2015 and to increase to 4.7% in 2016, influenced by lower 
growth in China and its implications for emerging Asia and 
a much weaker outlook in Russia owing to oil price drops, 
among other factors. 

Lower oil and commodity prices also explain the weaker 
growth forecast for SSA, including a more subdued outlook for 
Nigeria and South Africa. Regional GDP growth is projected 
to remain steady at 4.6% in 2015 and rise gradually to 5.1% 
in 2017, supported by sustained infrastructure investment, 
increased agricultural production, and expanding service 
sectors. 

The IMF expects commodity prices and capital inflows to 
provide less support, with demand and economic activity 
in emerging markets remaining subdued. However, the 
international monetary body expects SSA to remain one of 
the fastest growing regions.

In South Africa, growth although muted, is on the cards in 
2015. Lower oil prices and a rise in domestic demand could 
power a modest rebound for South Africa’s economy in 
2015. Lower oil prices are helping to contain inflation, even 
as the Rand depreciated 10% against the US Dollar during 

the year. A lower rate of inflation will in turn be a boost to 
consumer finances. 

A weaker Rand will also make South African exports more 
attractive, but lower interest in commodities is expected 
to continue, cancelling out some advantages. The duration 
of strike action experienced in 2014 is not expected to 
be replicated in either 2015 or the longer term. However, 
constraints to the supply of electricity will still limit economic 
growth potential in the next few years. The IMF forecasts 
growth of 2.1% in 2015, lower than previous forecasts, while 
the government is expecting 2.5% growth. 

The overarching growth strategy for South Africa is contained 
in the National Development Plan (NDP), a framework for 
achieving key economic and social objectives. Together with 
other national growth and development strategies (such as 
New Growth Path and Industrial Policy Action Plan), the NDP 
provides the basis for South Africa’s economic and social 
transformation. 

The expected developments in South Africa, together 
with the growth and development strategies in place, will 
most likely result in an encouraging atmosphere for credit 
extension to the business sector. Such a development would 
assist the Trust in delivering on its mandate of unlocking 
economic potential in its geographical investment areas, 
promoting broad-based black empowerment and stimulating 
job creation. 
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Material risks 
and opportunities

10

Material Risks
The Trust faces a number of risks that could affect its business operations and ultimately its ability to create value in the long-term. 
During the year under review, we conducted the annual strategic risk assessment workshop with the objective of identifying the top 
ten risks that would prevent the Trust from achieving its strategic objectives. These risks matched to mitigation controls as well as 
the related opportunities available are reflected in the graph and table below:

Rank Key Risk Risk 
Category

Current Controls Opportunity

1 Revised business 
model and continuity 

Strategic risk • Development of a revised business model 
strategy and seeking buy-in with stakeholders

• Increased product offering
• Unlimited lifespan of the Trust

2 Inability of Fund to fulfil 
its mandate 

Operational 
risk

• Implementation of strategy, Corporate 
Plan and Annual Performance Plan, which 
is aligned with the Provincial Government 
strategies of EDTEA

• Compliance with Lender loan agreements 

• Increased investment 
opportunities

• Improved stakeholder 
management

3 Failure to attract, retain 
and develop staff

Operational 
risk

• Training and development
• Employee wellness scheme in place
• Benchmarking of salaries and Employee 

Incentive Scheme in place

• Attraction and retention of 
people assets

Risk number

Inherent risk
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Rank Key Risk Risk 
Category

Current Controls Opportunity

4 Credit and investment 
risk – default on loan 
repayments by the 
promoters

Credit risk • Business processes and polices are in place 
and are adhered to

• Loan approval done by internal and external 
committees and approval processes and 
procedures are in place 

• Proactive monitoring of the project portfolio

• Growth in reserves
• Reduction in impairments
• Improved cost-to-income ratio

5 Market risk Market risk • Ensuring that legal agreements accommodate 
changes in macro and microeconomic 
environment

• Review of product offering to tailor it in line 
with market conditions

• Review of investment and credit decisions line 
up with changes in the markets

• Continuous monitoring of portfolio and market 
developments 

• Maintain good governance
• Reduction in impairments

6 Governance, 
regulatory, legal and 
compliance

Regulatory 
risk

• Policies and procedures in place
• Transparent reporting to respective 

governance committees                       

• Maintain good governance

7 Geopolitical risk Political risk • Monitor political landscape by constant 
engagement/lobbing with key stakeholders 
and managing key relationships

• Continuous reporting to EDTEA and delivery 
of mandate

• EDTEA’s representation at key KGFT meetings 

• Sectorial diversification
• Increased investment 

opportunities

8 Reputation risk Operational 
risk

• Adherence to policies such as Politically 
Exposed People Policy and Communication & 
Media policies

• Upfront communication with promoters on the 
status of the Fund with regards to financing 

• Improved reputation tracking
• Brand awareness

9 Fund becomes 
financially 
unsustainable (going 
concern)

Financial risk • Effective annual budgeting process including 
monthly monitoring of actual vs budget 
variances

• Cost-cutting measures are implemented
• Deals are priced according to loan pricing 

policy approved by the Trust 
• Effective due diligence and post-investment 

monitoring of projects by the projects team
• Maintaining a diversified loan portfolio 
• Proactive cash flow management  

• Longevity of a perpetual fund
• Self-sustainability
• Increasing asset base

10 Business continuity risk Operational 
risk

• Business Continuity Plan (BCP) and Disaster 
Recovery Plans (DRP) are in place 

• Testing of the BCP and DRP done annually 

• Operating environment without 
significant downtime

• Maintain customer satisfaction
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business Model11

Current Public Private Partnership (PPP) Model of the Fund
a closed fund with a commitment period until August 2015. 
To date, the Trust has approved funding totalling R564.1m 
to projects. Of the funding approvals to date, an amount of 
R480.7m has been disbursed.

Breakdown of Fund Contributions 
Institution
Rm

Senior Facility Mezzanine 
Facility

Total Debt Capital Total Facility

KZN Provincial Government - - - 362.5 362.5

SBSA 175 25 200 - 200

DBSA 94 131 225 - 225

TOTAL 269 156 425 362.5 787.5

In adhering to its mandate, the Trust is assisted by the 
IC that considers investment proposals presented by 
executive management, and recommends these to the 
Board for approval. The IC also provides oversight of the 
post-investment management of funded projects. The IC is 
guided by the Trust’s Investment, Credit and Loan Pricing 
policies, which are regularly reviewed to ensure that they are 
appropriate and aligned to industry best practices. 

The IC is made up of academically qualified members with 
experience in banking, project finance, accounting and 
investment banking. Three of the IC members, including the 

Chairman, are appointed by the Trustees and two members 
are representatives of the Lenders. 

Future en-commandite Partnership Model 
In terms of the approved evolution strategy of the Trust, it 
intends to set up an en-commandite (or limited liability) 
partnership to manage future funds. This is further 
discussed in the strategy section below. In order to give 
effect to a partnership, the Trust has, post 31 March 2015, 
unencumbered its capital from the existing security given 
by the Facility Lenders. This involved a prepayment of the 
existing exposure and a cancellation of the debt facilities. 

The Fund, which has a current Fund size of R787.5m made up 
of R362.5m capital contribution by EDTEA and R425m in debt 
facilities from the Lenders, is shown in the table below. Capital 
contribution represents 46% of the total Fund. The Fund is 
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12 strategy
KGFT is a development finance institution in KZN with 
a vision of financing growth. Its mission is to support 
sustainable growth in KZN by financing private sector 
projects that drive economic success, stimulate job 
creation, promote B-BBEE and reduce inequality.

Strategic Planning Process

The Board attended a two-day strategic workshop 
where the Trustees and management deliberated 
the direction and content of the Corporate Plan of 
the Trust for the period 2015/2016-2019/2020. The 

workshop received critical presentations from the EDTEA (on 
the Department Strategy) and the KZN Planning Commission 
(on the PGDP), which in turn informed the future strategy and 
direction of the Fund. 

In order to address the challenges arising from the limited 
product offering, the post-disbursement challenges and 
the limitations arising from the security structure within 
the current model, a revised model of an en-commandite 
partnership is considered the preferred model for the Trust. 

Alignment to Provincial Strategies
During the workshop, the Board also aligned its mandate 
to both relevant national and provincial policies such as the 
National Development Plan (NDP), the Provincial Growth and 
Development strategy (PGDS), the Provincial Spatial and 

Economic Development Strategy (PSEDS), Industrial Policy 
Action Plan (IPAP) II and the New Growth Path (NGP).

The final 2014/2015-2019/2020 Corporate Plan was tabled 
and adopted by the Board of Trustees at the meeting held 
on 19 February 2015. The five-year corporate plan has 
been prepared on the basis of the above, and has further 
incorporated the objectives and overview of the en-
commandite partnership based on the deliberations of the 
Board of Trustees during the Board strategy session in 
November 2014.

Alignment to Provincial Growth and 
development Plan (PGdP)
The Trust has aligned itself to the KZN 2012-2030 PGDP 
through its mandate, mission and investment policy. The 
Trust is set up to provide project finance to projects within 
specific target sectors, in areas where gaps or backlogs 
in economic development and job creation have not been 
adequately addressed by traditional financial institutions. 

The Trust seeks to align itself to four of the seven strategic 
goals identified in the KZN PGDP, namely job creation, 
strategic infrastructure development, environmental 
sustainability and governance and policy.

The table on the next page shows the alignment between the 
PGDP goals and the Fund’s activities.
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Alignment of the Trust to PGdP 
Provincial Strategic Goal Objective Trust Alignment 

Goal 1 – Job Creation
To expand Provincial economic 
output and employment

• Enhance sectorial development 
through trade and investment

• The Trust funds projects with a high potential of creating 
sustainable jobs in the Province in major economic sectors, 
i.e. Tourism, Mining and Mineral Beneficiation, Agro-
processing and Transport and Logistics 

Goal 4 – Strategic 
Infrastructure Development 
To provide infrastructure for 
the social and economic 
growth and development 
needs of KZN

• Development of ICT Infrastructure
• Improve energy production and supply

• The Trust funds projects that are infrastructure in nature, 
i.e. ICT, telecoms, transport & logistics and healthcare 
infrastructure in the Province. It also seeks to improve 
energy production in the Province by funding projects that 
seek to generate, transmit and distribute energy sources 
such as coal, hydro, wind, solar, gas, steam, bio-diesel, 
wave power and nuclear

Goal 5 – Environmental 
Sustainability 
To reduce global greenhouse 
gas emissions and create a 
social-ecological capacity to 
adapt to climate change

• Advance alternative energy generation 
and reduce reliance on fossil fuels

• The Trust aligns itself by ensuring that projects being 
funded adhere to Equator Principles (the principles adopted 
by the financial industry as a benchmark for determining, 
assessing and managing social and environmental risk in 
project financing). The Fund ensures that all projects funded 
are in compliance with environmental regulations as per the 
Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism. The fund 
also supports alternative energy generation projects 

Goal 6 – Governance and 
Policy 
The population of KZN
is satisfied with the levels of 
government service delivery

• Eradicate fraud and corruption in 
Government so that it is corruption 
free

• The Trust adheres to good corporate governance, PFMA 
and King III 

• The Trust strives to maintain its Clean Audit record

Alignment to edTeA Strategic Goals
The Trust has aligned itself to the EDTEA 2013-2018 strategic goals through its mandate, mission and investment policy as follows:

Alignment of the Trust to the edTeA
Strategic Goals Strategic Objectives Trust Alignment
Lead and coordinate 
integrated economic planning 
and development

• To facilitate the implementation of 
B-BBEE strategy and policies

• To drive the growth of the KZN 
provincial economy

• The Trust’s investment mandate promotes B-BBEE by 
requiring a minimum of 30% BEE shareholding or level 4 
B-BBEE in all projects it provides funding 

• The Trust was solely created to fund projects that bring 
economic development in the Province

Facilitate sustainable and 
inclusive economic growth to 
ensure job creation 

• To enhance sector and industrial 
development through trade, 
investment and exports logistics, ICT, 
manufacturing, green economy, agri-
business, tourism, creative industries, 
maritime, aerotropolis, aviation

• Development of ICT infrastructure
• To investigate and develop viable 

alternative energy generation options

• The Trust funds infrastructure projects in the following 
sectors: manufacturing, ICT, agro-processing, mining and 
mineral beneficiation, energy and transport and logistics in 
the Province in support of this objective
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Strategic Goals Strategic Objectives Trust Alignment
Develop and transform the 
tourism sector to achieve 
destination competitiveness

• To develop and fund the implementation 
of tourism sector specific products

• The Fund supports projects in the tourism sector by 
funding infrastructure associated with natural, cultural, 
man-made and business attractions. It also funds 
infrastructure, including accommodation facilities such as 
hotels, lodges and game parks

Future en-commandite Partnership Model of 
New Fund
In terms of the approved evolution strategy of the Trust, the 
Trust intends to set up an en-commandite (or limited liability) 
partnership to manage future funds. 

Background and Introduction to an 
en-commandite Partnership
An en-commandite partnership is an extraordinary partnership 
that differs from an ordinary partnership with regards to 
the partner’s liability to third parties for the partnership’s 
debts. Such a partnership is established by contract 
between parties and there are no registration requirements 
for its establishment, nor is an en-commandite partnership 
regulated by any statute. The en-commandite partnership is 
the most common legal structure used as vehicles for private 
equity investments in South Africa and internationally. 

A distinguishing feature of the en-commandite partnership is 
that the day-to-day business of the partnership is carried on by a 
partner, called the ‘general partner’ on behalf of the partnership 
and the other partners, referred to as ‘commanditarian’ (or 
limited) partners. The latter remain undisclosed, and may not 
participate actively in the business of the partnership. The 
Trust’s overarching consideration in choosing this vehicle was 
that the Equity Fund should be established in accordance 
with the generally accepted structures and methods used 
internationally and in South Africa. 

The Trust also considered the need to have as simple and 
effective governance structure that is practical together with 
the need to minimise the operational expenses of both the 
existing Debt Fund and the Equity Fund. 

unencumbering of Government Capital and 
the establishment of an en-commandite 
Partnership
In order to give effect to a partnership, the Trust has, post 
31 March 2015, unencumbered its capital from the existing 
security given by the Facility Lenders. This involved a 
prepayment of the existing exposure and a cancellation of 
the debt facilities. 

As the Trust is released of its obligations under the facility 
agreements, it will set up both a Debt Fund and an Equity Fund. 
This means that the new Debt Fund will no longer be housed 
within the Trust, but rather in a partnership. A further Equity 
Fund will be established and housed within its own partnership 
agreement. It will further be able to bring additional investors on 
board and distribute its entire capital base allocated to it by the 
EDTEA. 

The Equity Fund (Fund 2) will not only diversify the products 
offered by the Trust, thereby increasing its ability to attract 
project promoters, it will also offer much needed relief for aspirant 
B-BBEE promoters with viable business ideas who do not 
personally have the ability to access equity and/or guarantees 
to implement them. 

The Fund seeks to fill the capital gap on bankable business 
plans and commercially viable projects in a developmental way 
without taking very large stakes in the businesses and squashing 
entrepreneurial enthusiasm. Therefore, the Fund seeks to 
differentiate itself from traditional private equity funds in that the 
KZN Equity Fund has a developmental mandate that it seeks to 
serve in creating jobs, sustainability of various economic sectors 
and empowerment of previously disadvantaged individuals. 

The Fund is also envisaged to provide Guarantee products. This 
is in line with the need as identified by the EDTEA. Targeted 
investments often require Financial Guarantees to deliver on 
contracts and/or financing before it can commence work/delivery 
on certain projects and/or take delivery (or allowed ownership) 
on equipment or finance without financial/funding backing. 

In a number of instances, target entities do not have a sizable 
balance sheet nor the level of security that will convince 
the traditional institutions (e.g. commercial banks) to issue 
guarantees. In this scenario, Fund 2 will play a meaningful role as 
a provider of financial guarantees that are backed by sustainable 
contracts (e.g. tenders awarded) until such time that the projects 
initially being provided with a guarantee develop a sound track 
record, whereupon other investment products can be introduced 
or guarantees can be sold on to the traditional channels.
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our stakeholders13

KGFT recognises that managing relationships with its various stakeholders is key for the effective execution of its mandate and to 
ensure the long-term sustainability of the Fund. KGFT interacts regularly with its stakeholder groups in order to understand and 
respond to legitimate stakeholder concerns.

Stakeholder Group Why we Engage Engagement Methods What we Engage on

Provincial Government • To facilitate the alignment 
of KGFT with Government 
priorities

• To monitor performance and 
report on activities 

• Regular meetings with the 
MEC for EDTEA

• Quarterly performance 
reporting 

• EDTEA representatives 
attend KGFT Board 
meetings

• Presentations to EDTEA 
and Standing Committee on 
Public Accounts (Scopa)

• KGFT’s Corporate Plan and 
Annual Performance Plan

• KGFT’s developmental role
• Strategy and long-term 

sustainability
• Financial performance
• Carrying out of the mandate 

Lenders (DBSA and 
SBSA)

• Facility agreements require 
KGFT to engage with the 
Lenders

• Participation of the Lender’s 
nominees in KGFT’s Board 
and Board Sub-committee 
meetings

• KGFT’s investment portfolio 
and project pipeline

• Strategy and long-term 
sustainability

• Financial performance

Clients (existing and 
prospective)

• To understand client needs
• Enhance developmental 

impact
• Attract funding 

opportunities
• Inform clients of how to 

apply for funding 

• Client meetings
• Marketing campaigns
• Roadshows
• Website
• Business networking
• KGFT’s audio visual 
• Brochures
• Social media
• Transaction tombstones

• Client needs (funding and 
non-funding support)

• Job creation
• Perceptions and 

expectations
• Environmental impact

R
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Stakeholder Group Why we Engage Engagement Methods What we Engage on

Employees • To understand and respond 
to staff needs and concerns

• To align employees’ work 
with the corporate strategy 
and performance targets

• To create an inclusive 
environment where 
employees feel valued and 
committed

• Regular staff meetings
• Identification of training and 

development needs 
• Performance reviews
• Presentations and 

workshops
• Employee wellness 

initiatives
• Employee climate surveys

• KGFT’s strategy
• Internal developments
• Financial performance
• Development and training
• Internal policies and 

procedures and any 
changes thereto 

• Performance management
• Employee Code of Conduct

Suppliers • To ensure timeous, cost- 
effective procurement of 
goods and services from 
quality suppliers

• Meetings with suppliers
• Advertisement of bids/

tenders
• KGFT’s website

• Supplier performance
• KGFT’s procurement 

practises (including the 
prioritisation of Broad-
Based Black Economic 
Empowerment suppliers)

• Service Level Agreements/
contracts/engagement 
letters

Strategic partners, 
industry bodies and 
other Government 
business enterprises

• To increase the exposure 
and market presence of 
the Fund through strategic 
interaction

• Roadshows
• Business breakfasts
• Participation/involvement 

in industry bodies and 
business associations

• Memorandum of 
Understanding 

• Advertising
• Brochures

• Understanding KGFT’s 
mandate and developmental 
role in KZN

• KGFT’s offering
• Financial performance
• Future partnership 

opportunities

Media • To enhance KGFT’s 
reputation as the financier 
of choice in the KZN 
province 

• Direct engagement with 
media (interviews/media 
briefings)

• Print media

• Changes and updates to 
KGFT’s business offering 

• Success 



26
THE KZN GROWTH FUND TRUST

Annual performance Report14

Report on Performance against Predetermined Objectives for the Year ended 31 March 2015

Programme 1: Finance and Administration

Strategic Goals: Financial Sustainability

Objectives Measure/Key Performance 
Indicator

Measurement 
Period

Annual Target Annual Result

1.1 Sub-programme Name: Office of the CEO
To provide strategic 
direction and 
leadership

Achievement of APP targets Quarterly 85% 100%

To promote sound 
governance

Effective Board performance Annually A score of at least 75% N/A – assessment to 
be performed after 
the financial year

1.2 Sub-Programme Name: Financial Administration
To provide strategic 
direction and 
leadership

External audit opinion Annually Unqualified External 
Audit report

Unqualified External 
Audit report

Internal audit opinion Quarterly No adverse findings No adverse findings

% of repeat findings on internal audit 
report resolved

Annually 80% 100%

Submission of unaudited AFS to AG by 
31 May

Annually 31 May 26 May

Submission of audited AFS to Provincial 
Treasury by 31 August

Annually 31 August 20 August

QPR to be submitted to DED&T as 
indicated by DED&T

Quarterly Dates as per DED&T 
schedule

Q1-21/07/2014
Q2-20/10/2014
Q3-19/01/2015
Q4-20/04/2015

Q1-21/07/2014
Q2-14/10/2014
Q3-19/01/2015
Q4-15/04/2015

% actual overhead expenses variance 
against budget per the Income Statement

Quarterly Less than 5% 1% under budget

Solvency ratios (total assets/total 
liabilities)

Quarterly 1:1 2.1:1

Liquidity ratio (current assets/current 
liabilities)

Quarterly 1:1 265.5:1

1.3 Sub-Programme Name: Corporate Services
To effectively manage 
Human Resources, 
recruitment, training 
and development

% of positions filled Quarterly At least 85% 86%
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Programme 1: Finance and Administration

Strategic Goals: Financial Sustainability

Objectives Measure/Key Performance 
Indicator

Measurement 
Period

Annual Target Annual Result

1.3 Sub-programme Name: Corporate Services (cont.)
To effectively manage 
Human Resources, 
recruitment, training 
and development

% of staff complement undertaking training 
& development against annual training plan

Quarterly At least 85% 90%

% of total employees performance 
appraisals conducted

Quarterly 100% 100%

Average performance score for the whole 
organisation

Quarterly Average score of at 
least 3 out of 5

3

% of internal audit findings resolved Quarterly At least 85% of 
findings resolved

100%

Number of working days down time per annum Quarterly Less than 5 days 0 days

1.4 Sub-programme Name: Marketing and Communications
Increase the brand 
awareness of KGFT

No. of campaigns conducted Quarterly 4 4

No. of advertorials placed in publications Quarterly 4 12

Programme 2: Project Origination and Aftercare

Strategic Goals: Unlock KZN Province’s Economic Growth, Create Permanent Jobs, and Facilitate B-BBEE

2.1 Sub-programme Name: Project origination and appraisal
To ensure that the 
Trust fully disburses 
the Fund into viable 
projects within the 
availability periods

Number of permanent jobs created Quarterly 151 1 410

Rand value of Initial Screening Report (ISR) Quarterly R300m R573.4m

Rand value of Final Appraisal Report (FAR) 
approved

Quarterly R200m R373.4m

Rand value of projects reaching financial 
close

Quarterly R151m R310m

Average time taken from initial screening 
stage to FAR

Quarterly 4 months 3 months

Average time taken from FAR to 
disbursement

Quarterly 4 months 3 months

2.2 Sub-programme Name: Project Disbursements
To ensure that 
projects are disbursed 
in line with loan 
agreements

Rand value of projects disbursed Quarterly R100m R290m

2.3 Sub-programme Name: Project Legal
To manage and limit the 
Trusts legal exposure

Recovery of impaired project loans in the 
event of litigation

Quarterly At least 50% of 
outstanding loan 
capital recovered

No projects loan 
were impaired during 

the financial year

2.4 Sub-programme Name: Aftercare
To effectively manage 
the loan portfolio

% of performing loans Quarterly At least 95% 100%

To ensure the loan 
portfolio performs 
in line with the loan 
covenants

% of portfolio adhering to loan covenants Quarterly 100% 100%
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Financial performance15

Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders   511 629 943  216 058 044 137%

Operations
No. of employees 19 14 –

Previously disadvantaged South Africans 16 12 –

No. of females 11 9 –

While we had set out to achieve a net profit of R20.7m this year, we recorded a profit of R50.5m. This was largely attributable to the 
reversal of a provision for impaired loans and advances amounting to R30.1m. The evolution strategy approved by the MEC in March 
2015 will ensure that the Trust continues in its growth trajectory in the 2015/2016 financial year going forward.

Key Performance Measures

Rands 2015 2014 % Change

Profitability
Interest income 47 291 133 38 549 177 23%

Raising fee    900 000              –  100%

Interest paid   (3 136 157) (9 385 245) (67%)

Other income      3 363 209   12 366 549 (73%)

Net loan impairment reversal   22 313 332              –  100%

Operating expenses  (27 994 932)  (34 115 536) (18%)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 594 784 041  607 999 730 (2%)

Loans and advances

New loans and advanced    291 999 500   4 774 189 6016%

Repayments  182 804 155    48 947 584 273%

Gross loans and advances  363 416 961   224 384 145 62%

Provision for impairments               –     22 313 332 (100%)

Net loans and advances 363 416 961   202 070 813 80%

Provision for impairments as a % of gross loans & advances 0% 10% –

Non-performing loans and advances               –               –  100%

Net loans and advances   363 416 961   202 070 813 80%

Total Assets   961 775 761   814 389 451 18%

Liabilities
Deferred funds   447 511 238  531 792 555 (16%)

Loans and borrowings               –    59 244 580 (100%)

Total Liabilities   450 145 818  598 331 407 (25%)

Ratios
Total liabilities to total assets 0.47 0.73 –

Current assets to current liabilities 1.37 1.23 –
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Contributing Value 
to the Economy

16

economic Value Add Statement
KZN Growth Fund Trust contributed value to the local economy and created wealth for its stakeholders for the current and previous 
reporting periods as follows:

Rands 2015 2014
Interest income       47 291 133       38 549 177 

Raising fee          900 000               –  

Other income        3 363 209       12 366 549 

Direct Economic Value Generated       51 554 342       50 915 726 

To suppliers in payment of operating expenses        8 079 995       22 571 069 

To employees       16 185 498       11 070 805 

To providers of funds        5 572 015        9 371 899 

Other interest paid          115 841           13 346 

Unemployment Insurance Fund           65 836            4 260 

Skills development levies          138 857           30 226 

Property rates and taxes          130 367          105 737 

Economic Value Distributed       30 288 408       43 167 342 

Accumulated profit       21 265 934        7 748 384 
Net impairment and suspended interest reversal on loans and advances to 
customers

      30 148 646 -

Depreciation and amortisation          842 682          333 439 

Economic Value Retained for Expansion Growth       50 571 899        7 414 945 

Economic value added during the year is represented by payments made to employees and service providers, amounting to 
R16m and R8m respectively. 

The Trust is committed to promoting economic growth through applying the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 
5 of 2000 (PPPFA) regulations when appointing service providers. This includes the need for bidding service providers to be 
B-BBEE compliant as part of the selection criteria. 
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The Trust procures goods and services from consultants, contractors and other suppliers mainly through open tenders. The 
figure above reflects expenditure during the year under review by service category. The Trust also promotes the procurement of 
goods and services from KZN-based service providers. About 95% of the procurement spend in the year under review was to 
KZN-based suppliers.
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socio-economic 
Development
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In the year under review, the Trust approved funding 
amounting to R373.4m for four projects in the manufacturing, 
telecommunications and transport & logistics sectors. In 
line with the Trust’s mandate, the projects approved and/
or funded from inception to date addresses the socio-
economic needs of the province through the following:

• The creation of employment opportunities in excess of 
6 611 jobs;

• The provision of spin-off opportunities for small and 
medium enterprises in the respective value chains; 

• Skills transfer during the development and construction 
of the funded infrastructure;

• Enhanced quality of life and local economic development 
as a result of improved quality of services; and

• Reduction in infrastructure backlogs. 

The details of each of the projects approved for funding are 
presented in the following case studies:

dARK FIBRe AFRICA (PTY) LTd 
The Trust has continually supported Dark Fibre Africa 
(Pty) Ltd (DFA) since its inception. Today DFA is one of the 
biggest carrier neutral broadband infrastructure providers in 
the country. Initially, the Trust financed DFA to the amount 
of R193m which was prepaid and refinanced by a lower 
amount of R45m in the 2014/15 financial year. DFA’s fibre 
optic network has expanded considerably for the last three 
years and now stands at over 8,000km of fibre nationwide. 
The network enables the provision of high-speed voice, data 
and video services to a range of customers, including mobile 
network operators, fixed network operators, internet service 
and content providers. At household level, this results in 
reduced communication costs and improved quality of 
services. 

DFA currently has a staff compliment of 336 people and 
growing. To date, DFA has created in excess of 4,200 job 
opportunities, directly and indirectly. Indirect jobs are mainly 
created through the use of contractors to deploy the fibre 
during construction phase.

Source: Dark Fibre Africa – infrastructure monitoring and installation.
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MPACT LTd
The Trust approved a term loan o Mpact Ltd for the expansion 
of its Felixton Mill in the Empangeni in KZN. The required 
R200m loan from the Trust is part of the first phase of the 
mill’s R765m total expansion programme which will cater for 
increased production capacity as well as machinery additions 
in which to cater for a 100% recyclable waste input. The 
mill manufactures recycled packaging and industrial paper 
grades such as containerboard and carton board. 

The Trust’s participation in the project is entrenched by the 
following:

• The expansion programme which will cater for increased 
production capacity from 155,000 tons per annum to 
215,000 tons as well as technological efficiencies that 
will enable a switch from 75% recyclable waste input and 
25% bagasse to 100% recyclable waste input. Further, 
upgrades at the mill will reduce Mpact’s carbon footprint 
and energy consumption.

• The Felixton Mill expansion project is in the Empangeni 
district which lines up with the focused spatial context 
of the Provincial Growth and Development Strategy (the 
“PGDS”) in a secondary node. The expansion of the 
Felixton Mill will have far reaching community impact and 

acts as a socio-economic catalyst through the creation 
of over 1,160 jobs in the informal sector and supporting 
small to medium size companies. 

• Mpact has various programmes in place to support 
and provide guidance to the waste collector in an effort 
to ensure that the collectors run their waste collecting 
business efficiently. To this end Mpact Recycling has 
initiated projects to develop collections in deep rural 
areas and in former township areas. These initiatives 
are based on assisting local entrepreneurs (established 
and aided by Mpact) to set up businesses and providing 
support for them through the provision of equipment 
and purchases of collected paper. Mpact has helped 
over 40 entrepreneurs start recycling businesses. The 
recycling department of Mpact assists PDI entrepreneurs 
by supplying them with equipment, expertise, mentoring 
and guidance in setting up a waste paper buying centre 
in a specific area. Mpact also guarantees them the off 
take of whatever they collect and give them preferential 
payment terms to help them with cash flow. These 
centres not only create jobs within the centre itself, but 
also stimulate employment in the surrounding area by 
creating a demand for recycled waste collections.

Source: Mpact Recycling – Khombisile Buthelezi’s Buy-back centre.
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LINK AFRICA (PTY) LTd
The Trust approved total funding of R65m to Link Africa (Pty) 
Ltd (Link Africa) for the deployment of fibre optic networks in 
metropolis and municipal areas. The company uses a patented 
system of deploying fibre optic cable in existing underground 
systems, namely, sewer, storm water and other conduits. This 
technology enables Link Africa to establish fibre optic networks 
five times cheaper and three times faster than conventional 
means of dark fibre deployment (such as trenching). 

Link Africa’s network, which now spans over 1,200km in 
three major cities, has in addition to reducing broadband 
infrastructure backlogs also helped in fast-tracking home 
connectivity through fibre-to-the-home. The company has 
also positively impacted on the well-being of a number of 
households by prioritising the use of small-to-medium 
enterprises (SME) to roll-out the network. The project is 
anticipated to create at least 300 jobs, directly and indirectly.

IduBe COLd STORAGe (PTY) LTd

During the year under review, the Trust approved funding for the 
first cold storage facility to be located within Dube TradePort 
zone. The project entails the design, construction, installation, 
commissioning, and operation and maintenance of an 8,680 
pallet (8,680 tons) multi-temperature cold storage facility. 

The facility will provide the cold supply chain industry 

with a high-tech and efficient 
multi-temperature cold storage 
facility for handling and storage 
of perishable consumer goods. 
iDube Cold Storage is designed 
to be a multi-purpose facility with 
capacity to handle chilled as well 
as frozen cargo. Given its storage 
capacity, the facility will be one 
of the biggest multi-purpose cold 
storage facilities in KZN and the 
only facility located next to King 
Shaka International Airport, which 

is now considered a premier logistics airport. This multi-
temperature cold store is expected to partly alleviate the 
shortage of cold storage space in Durban particularly during 
the fruit season. 

A total of 300 job opportunities, the majority of which for the 
unskilled population, will be created by the cold store.

Source: Link Africa – Fibre being installed in underground systems.

Source: iDube Cold Storage – Artists impression of the cold storage facility.
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SOuTH AFRICAN SHIPYARdS (PTY) LTd
The Trust’s commitment to supporting black economic 
empowerment in the ocean economy gained recognition 
during the year under review. The KZN Growth Fund played 
a pivotal role in ensuring that the South African Shipyards’ 
(SAS) R1.4bn contract with Transnet National Ports Authority 
(TNPA) to build nine tugs became effective in August 2014. 
The Trust initially financed SAS in the amount of R42m to 
improve its shipbuilding and ship-repair capabilities by 
acquiring a floating deck in 2010. With the commencement 
of this historic tug building contract in 2014, both SAS and 
the Trust have successfully restructured the initial loan facility 
to the satisfaction of both parties. 

Boasting the enviable reputation of being the largest 
Shipyard in Southern Africa as well as still holding the 
record for building the largest Ship ever built on the African 
Continent, Southern African Shipyards is a proudly African 

Company. Southern African Shipyards provides a complete 
in house Marine Solutions through their Ship Building, Ship 
Repair, Naval Maintenance, Mechanical and fabrication and 
Oil & Gas departments. 

Further support by the Trust during the year led to the 
preservation of jobs at the company and more in downstream 
industries. SAS currently employs 152 permanent and 395 
contract employees. Being a 60% Black Owned Company 
and 12% owned by the Employees, there is a strong 
emphasis on Skills Development, Training and Development 
as well as Enterprise Development. The company also runs 
an apprentice training programme aimed at training and 
development of college leavers in marketing, management, 
design, project management, occupational health and safety 
as well as in the full range of shipbuilding disciplines. 

Source: South African Shipyards – Tug under construction.
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ReMuNeRATION RePORT
For KGFT to achieve its mandate, the organisation is 
committed to a remuneration philosophy that:
• Supports the execution of the mandate and business 

strategy;
• Promotes good governance and risk management;
• Aligns its policies, procedures and practices with best 

practice, and legislation (the PFMA, and King III, in 
particular); and

• Motivates and reinforces performance at all levels 
(organisational, functional and individual).

KGFT’s application of its remuneration philosophy aims to meet 
the strategic objectives of:
• Aiming to be market competitive in specific labour 

markets in order to attract, retain and motivate key and 
talented people;

• Determining the value proposition of the various job 
levels required by KGFT;

• Ensuring that the hybrid of performance and competency 
management forms an integral part of remuneration, 
thereby influencing the remuneration components of 
base pay and incentives;

• Payment is fair, appropriately structured and competitive 
remuneration;

• Applying good governance to remuneration practices 
within approved structures; and

• Supporting KGFT’s culture as embedded in its values.

Governance
The Board has ultimate responsibility for the remuneration 
policy and may depart from this policy if there are particular 
reasons to do so in an individual case. The Human Resources 
and Remuneration Committee (HR & REMCO) operates in 
accordance with a Board-approved mandate. 

The committee meets at least twice a year and is made up of 
only independent non-executives.

The CEO and his executives may attend meetings by 
invitation, but are excluded from deliberations relating to 
their individual remuneration.

A formal terms of reference codifies the tasks and 
responsibilities of the committee. Updates to the charter 

to effect application of King III recommendations, or other 
identified best practice, are made on a continuous basis.

The Board can utilise the services of independent advisors 
on matters relating to remuneration.

employee Remuneration
The Board is committed to attracting, motivating, managing 
and retaining employees of the highest calibre for KGFT 
through the payment of fair, appropriately structured and 
competitive remuneration. KGFT recognises a mix of both 
competitive and performance in its remuneration structure.

The remuneration packages for the employees are divided 
into fixed and variable components, including short-term 
performance incentives. KGFT is currently implementing a 
long-term incentive scheme that it expects to finalise during 
the 2015/2016 financial year. 

The long-term incentives will seek to ensure that KGFT’s 
ultimate long-term delivery outcomes are achieved.

Guaranteed Packages
All employees, including executives, receive a guaranteed 
package (GP) based on their roles and responsibilities. 
Contribution to retirement and insured benefits are included 
in the GP. 

The HR & REMCO reviews the CEO’s package and makes 
recommendations to the Board for consideration.

KGFT provides a range of benefits to employees over and 
above their guaranteed remuneration packages. Key benefits 
include study assistance for employees, annual leave, sick 
leave, as well as maternity and paternity leave.

Increases in GP for employees are based on a review of 
market data, the consideration of individual performance and 
potential, and the business priorities of KGFT.

Short-term Incentives
All employees, including executives, participate in a yearly short-
term incentive plan. Bonus payments are discretionary and 
depend on business performance and individual contribution. 

The performances of the employees are measured against 
pre-determined goals as approved by the Board.
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Retention Payments
Following the finalisation of the corporate strategy during the 
financial year, the Board approved the implementation of a 
retention incentive policy. 

This was aimed at ensuring that critical skills were maintained 
within KGFT, providing stability in the organisation. 

Details of the remuneration of Executive Management are 
reflected in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements.

Talent Management drive
KGFT has developed a strategic framework for the 
management of talent within the organisation, in order to 
ensure that the right people with the right skills are in the 
right roles at the right time to deliver on KGFT’s Five-year 
Corporate Plan. 

This aspect is governed by an approved Talent Management 
Framework, which identifies mission-critical positions and a 
succession plan to be followed to adequately manage the 
risks associated with staff movement and development in the 
organisation.

Organisational Culture
A move towards a ‘transparent’ culture has been adopted 
by KGFT by way of keeping Management Committee 
(MANCO) members and other staff members abreast of all 
developments within the organisation in the form of quarterly 
staff feedback meetings and fortnightly MANCO meetings. 
Invitations were extended to all MANCO members to the 
annual Strategic Planning session held in November 2014 to 
create awareness of KGFT’s strategic plan on all levels. 

Furthermore, MANCO has also been directly involved in 
the creation of the Corporate Plan as well as the Annual 
Performance Plan to enable understanding and follow-
through of the organisation’s objectives, as outlined in these 
documents. Further organisational transparency is enforced 
by KGFT’s subscription to ‘Whistleblowers’ in an effort to 
ensure the availability of anonymous reporting methods for 
instances of suspected occupational fraud.

Performance Monitoring
The Performance Management Policy has been reinforced 
to enable the recognition and rewarding of excellent 
achievements within the organisation. Training and 
development measures, as well as on-the-job coaching, is 
provided to employees to enable and encourage greater 
performance standards on an employee level, and inevitably, 
thereby impacting on overall performance of the organisation. 

employee Wellness
During the reporting period, various interventions were 
implemented that were aimed at working towards employee 
well-being in the categories of financial, emotional, physical 
and psychological wellbeing. We have enlisted ‘ICAS’ as the 
dedicated service provider for this service. The employees 
have been educated on the services available and on the 
processes to be followed to engage any of these services. 
Wellness programmes and activities conducted throughout 
KGFT during the year included:

• Employee Wellness Day, which enabled health screening 
tests and de-stress massages for all employees, was 
conducted in conjunction with ICAS;

• A ‘Financial Fitness’ presentation was conducted, 
educating employees on ways and available means of 
working with debt, credit, etc. 

KGFT – March 2015: Employee Wellness Day.

Training and development
Actual training spend for the year amounted to R58 976.74. In 
addition to these interventions, many other training exercises 
were undertaken as pro bono customer service initiatives 
from KGFT service providers, as follows:

• Protection of Personal Information (POPI) (by Edward 
Nathan Sonnenberg);

• Project Finance (by Deloitte);
• Financial Fitness (by Nedbank);
• Workplace Skills Plan (by BankSeta); and
• Media Training (by Ithala Development Finance 

Corporation).

KGFT has complied with the requirement to submit 
a workplace skills plan to BankSeta by 30 April. The 
organisation will be applying for available funded BankSeta 
programmes during the upcoming 2015/2016 financial year.
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I joined KGFT during 2007 as a receptionist, and have witnessed KGFT’s exciting evolution 
over the ensuing years. During this period, I have had the privilege of meeting with its various 
stakeholders and have witnessed first-hand the positive impact on individuals that have benefited 
by their association with the entity. 

I am a recipient of study assistance from KGFT, thereby enabling me to enrol for a Bachelor of 
Commerce Degree in Human Resources Management with Management College of Southern 
Africa (MANCOSA). Due to the support received, I will be completing my degree at the end of 
2015, and this will greatly assist me in pursuing and achieving my career aspirations in the human 
resources field. KGFT has first-hand displayed its belief that academic excellence is a cornerstone 
to establishing sustainable economic development. This is further supported by its mandate that 
entails funding projects that will create job opportunities and stimulate economic growth. 

I am indeed privileged to be an employee of KGFT as it aims to achieve its vision and make a 
positive impact in KZN. I look forward to the journey ahead with KGFT as it strives to ascend to 
new heights in the near future.

Ngiyabonga
Precious Mbambo

My Journey at KGFT

Financial Assistance
Financial assistance for purposes of academic fee payments 
and textbook purchases have been extended to a longstanding 

MARKeTING
During the 2014/2015 financial year, KGFT developed a 
comprehensive marketing strategy for the organisation 
to meet its short-, medium- and long-term marketing 
requirements, ultimately aimed at re-profiling the organisation 
and repositioning KGFT corporate brand. 

The marketing and brand communication drive officially 
commenced on the 25 August 2014 when KGFT officially 
launched the repositioning of its Brand, complemented by an 
advertising campaign (both print and outdoor advertisements) 
that was rolled out for a period of four months up to the end 
of December 2014. 

Furthermore, in wanting to fulfill the immediate mandate of 
the fund as set out in the corporate plan, a Public Relations 
agency was appointed to assist in deriving the necessary 
media coverage and platforms for the enhancement/
promotion/awareness of the corporate brand. 

During the implementation of the marketing and brand strategy 
project, a number of potential synergies between EDTEA entities 
were identified. As part of the marketing strategy review, a lucrative 
marketing collaboration opportunity was identified between The 
Trust and the business arm of EDTEA that include the following 
entities: Trade & Investment KZN; Richards Bay IDZ; Dube Trade 
Port; Ithala; Tourism KZN; and KZN Film Commission.

Throughout the 2014/2015 financial year, KGFT had forged 
strategic relationships in wanting to drive cross-marketing 
platforms in the form of national business breakfasts as 
well as finance and investment forums specific to KZN. This 
was also supported by cross-marketing of the respective 
agencies’ logos on both print and outdoor media publications, 
supporting the above. 

A symbiotic relationship with these entities exists and has 
resulted in cross enterprise pollination that has stimulated 
the growth of KGFT. This relationship is of paramount 
importance to the Trust as its existence is based on the level 
of investment in the Province. Furthermore, the Trust has also 
identified priority catalyst projects (which form part of the 
PGDP and that position the KZN province as an ideal trade, 
business and investment haven for investors/promoters, 
both in South Africa and across the globe) falling within its 
fellow EDTEA entities, for which it has sought to promote 
within the 2015/2016 campaign. 

The implementation of the current marketing strategy, as 
indicated above, has repositioned the Trust as ‘Financier 
of a Better Future’ and has aided the Trust to achieve its 
mandate of driving economic success, stimulating job 
creation, promoting B-BBEE and reducing inequality in the 
Province. The KZN niche market, which was not clearly 

employee, who is currently studying towards a Bachelor of 
Commerce degree.
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KGFT – August 2014: Re-Launch and unveiling of the new logo.

defined previously, has been clearly identified following 
the integrated marketing and brand strategic reviews. The 
outcome of the marketing and brand strategy project has 
improved the quantity and quality of projects received by the 
Trust that seek project finance. 

Marketing activities that have been implemented will continue 
to be exercised over the next five years as KGFT plans to 
grow its business within the period across all its respective 

target economic sectors. Future marketing promotions will 
include the KZN Equity Fund product suite, which includes 
quasi-equity and financial guarantees. It is also expected 
that marketing a mix of both debt and equity products is 
an opportunity long awaited by promoters, in order to fund 
and grow their businesses as well as serve as a catalyst for 
growth of the KZN economy.
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Corporate Governance19

KGFT strives for the overarching governance principles of 
accountability, fairness, transparency and responsibility. 
KGFT is established in terms of the Trust Property Control 
Act, 57 of 1998 and founded in terms of a Trust Deed. KGFT 
is neither a Company nor a listed Public Entity in terms of 
the PFMA. However, the Board of Trustees have elected 
to comply with the PFMA and the prevailing Treasury 
Regulations as applied to a schedule 3D Public Entity 
(government business enterprise) as well as the principles 
of good corporate governance contained in the King III. 

KGFT endorses King III and has endeavoured to adhere 
to the recommendations thereof as far as possible. 
A King III Gap Analysis was undertaken during the 
period to determine how effectively KGFT is applying 

the principles and recommendations contained therein. The 
key areas identified by management that require further 
attention included appointing a service provider to undertake 
the Board and Board committee evaluations (further details 
in this report); implementing a three-year phased approach to 
integrated reporting, with this report being KGFT’s first year 
of an integrated report; and reviewing the effectiveness of the 
internal audit function by the Audit and Risk Committee.

BOARd OF TRuSTeeS
The Board is ultimately responsible for the performance and 
affairs of KGFT and is accountable to the EDTEA. It provides 
strategic direction to the organisation.

The Board is governed by the Trust Deed, which records its 
objective to provide responsible business leadership and 
details duties of individual Trustees. In addition to the Trust 
Deed, the Board operates in terms of an approved Board 
Charter that sets out the Board’s role and responsibilities 
as well as the requirements for its composition and meeting 
procedures. 

The Board has a diverse mix of skills, expertise and experience 
that is required to meet KGFT’s strategic objectives. This 
includes finance, audit, legal, human resources, project 
finance and investment expertise and experience. 

The Board is responsible for setting and formulating 
economic, social and environmental direction through 
strategic objectives and key policies, major plans of action, 
its risk policy, annual budgets and business plans. It ensures 
that the EDTEA’s performance objectives are achieved 
through the implementation of structured reporting systems 
that are used to monitor performance.

BOARd STRuCTuRe ANd COMPOSITION
The Board currently has seven Trustees that comprise 
three independent Trustees nominated by the EDTEA and 
three independent Trustees nominated by the Lenders. 
The Trustees are appointed by the MEC for EDTEA and the 
CEO is a Trustee by virtue of his position. The roles of the 
Chairperson and CEO are separately held to ensure a clear 
division of duties. 

As part of the restructuring of KGFT, a new Board of Trustees 
was appointed on 28 January 2014. As at 31 March 2015, the 
Board of Trustees comprised:

• Ms Dudu Hlatshwayo – Independent Trustee 
nominated by the EDTEA (Chairman);

• Mr Helge Switala – Independent Trustee nominated by 
the Lenders (Deputy Chairman);

• Mr Siddiq Adam – Chief Executive Officer (CEO);
• Ms Delia Jay – Independent Trustee nominated by the 

Lenders;
• Professor Imtiaz Vally – Independent Trustee 

nominated by the EDTEA;
• Ms Phumzile Langeni – Independent Trustee 

nominated by the EDTEA; and
• Ms Zodwa Mbele – Independent Trustee nominated by 

the Lenders.

All new Trustees undergo an induction programme aimed at 
deepening their understanding of KGFT and the business 
environment in which it operates. Trustees are expected 
to keep themselves abreast of changes and trends in the 
business environment and markets, which shall include 
changes and trends in the economic, political, social, 
technology and legal climate generally.
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ReSIGNATION OF TRuSTeeS
Ms Zodwa Mbele was appointed to the board with effect from 
3 June 2014 following the resignation of Mr Ravi Kalaichelvan 
on 5 February 2014 due to capacity constraints. Mr 

Kalaichelvan legally remained a Trustee until the resignation 
was effected by the Master of the High Court on 3 June 2014.

Board of Trustees – 31 March 2015

Name Position Age Education/ 
Qualifications/Experience

Date of 
Appointment

Other Directorships  
of each Trustee

Ms Dudu Hlatshwayo Chairman 51 BSocSc (Hons), MBA 28/01/2014 Public Investment Corporation
Afmetco
Lanseria International Airport
Lanseria Holdings
Land Bank

Mr Siddiq Adam Trustee 44 BCom (Hons) (Economics); 
MSc (Applied 
Economics) (cum laude)

28/01/2014 KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority 
(trading as Tourism KZN) – 
Non-executive

Mr Helge Switala Deputy 
Chairman

64 BSc (Engineering) (Hon); 
B Admin; HonBSc 
(Operations Research) 
(cum Laude)

28/01/2014

Ms Delia Jay Trustee 42 BA LLB, MBA 28/01/2014 Inkuma Project Finance Consulting

Professor Imtiaz Vally Trustee 47 Master of Accountancy, 
Chartered Accountant(SA)

28/01/2014 Umgeni Water Services
Nepstar Investments
Durban Marine Theme Park

Ms Phumzile Langeni Trustee 41 BCom (Accounting), BCom 
(Hons)(Bus Mgt)

28/01/2014 Massmart Holdings
Imperial Holdings
Metrofile Holdings
Astrapak
MBD Credit Solutions Holdings
SA Taxi Finance Holdings
Primedia
Mineworkers Investment Company
St Marys School Waverly Foundation
Born Free Investments 55
Transaction Capital (Pty) Ltd
Redefine Properties

Ms Zodwa Mbele Trustee 44 Chartered Accountant (SA) 3/06/2014 GZN Consulting
Vergenoeg Mining Company
Amandlendoda Trading Enterprise
Isu-Women Investment Network
Sentech
GZN Consulting
Tornusil Construction
Stanlib Infrastructure Fund
Unokhethwako Development Trust
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Members Apr 
2014

May 
2014

Jul  
2014

Sep 
2014

Nov 
2014

Nov 2014
(Strategy 
Session)

Jan 2015
(Strategic 

Risk 
Workshop)

Feb 
2015

Ms Dudu Hlatshwayo (Chairman) ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓ ✓

Mr Siddiq Adam (CEO) ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓ ✓

Mr Helge Switala ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓ ✓

Ms Delia Jay ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓ ✓

Professor Imtiaz Vally ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓ ✓

Ms Phumzile Langeni A ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓✓ A

Ms Zodwa Mbele 
(appointed with effect 3 June 2014) N/A I ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ A ✓

Mr Ravi Kalaichelvan 
(resigned with effect 3 June 2014) A A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

✓ – Present | A – Absent with apology |  ✓✓ – Special Meeting |  I – In attendance by invitation

BOARd eFFeCTIVeNeSS ANd eVALuATION
King III requires that the performance of the Board, its sub-
committees and individual members be evaluated on an annual 
basis. KGFT has appointed an independent service provider to 
conduct these evaluations in the 2015/2016 financial year. The 
evaluations will then be conducted internally for the following 
two years and outsourced every third year. The evaluations are 
expected to take place in July 2015 and the results thereof will 
be reported upon in the integrated report for the 2015/2016 
financial year. The evaluations will aid in identifying, among 
other things, whether the skills and experience of the Board 
and its sub-committees are adequate for the size and nature 
of KGFT’s business.

deLeGATed POWeR OF AuTHORITY
The Board is authorised to form standing and ad hoc 
committees to assist it in the execution of its duties, powers 

and authorities. The Delegation of Authority is reviewed 
annually and approved by the Board. The terms of reference 
of each committee clearly differentiates, where appropriate, 
between powers that are delegated to committees for 
decision by the committee concerned and those in respect 
of which the Board retains decision-making powers but 
requires a recommendation from the committee concerned. 
Delegation of authority to Board committees or management 
does not mitigate or discharge the Board and its Trustees 
of their duties and responsibilities, or ultimately their 
accountability.

BOARd MeeTINGS
The Board holds at least four meetings a year as well as 
an annual strategy session and a strategic risk assessment 
workshop. Special meetings are convened where necessary. 
Attendance at Board meetings was as per the table below:

BOARd COMMITTeeS
The Board has established three standing committees to 
assist it in exercising its authority. All Board committees 
operate under Board approved charters that are reviewed on 
an annual basis. 

The Board committees are the Human Resources and 
Remuneration Committee, the Audit and Risk Committee 
and the Investment Committee.

The Audit and Risk Committee and the Investment Committee 
are each chaired by independent non-executive Trustees, 
and the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
is chaired by an independent, non-executive who is not a 
Trustee.
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AudIT ANd RISK COMMITTee
Objectives
The Audit and Risk Committee monitors the adequacy 
of financial controls and reporting; reviews audit plans 
and adherence to these by external and internal auditors; 
ascertains the reliability of the audit; ensures that financial 
reporting complies with IFRS and the PFMA; ensures the 
integrity of integrated reporting; ensures that there are 
effective measures in place on Information Technology risks 
as they relate to financial reporting; reviews and makes 
recommendations on all financial matters; oversees the 
compliance and risk reporting; assesses the effectiveness of 
the finance function and internal audit; appoints the internal 
auditor and recommends the external auditor to the Board.

Composition and Meeting Procedure
The Audit Committee meets at least four times a year in line 
with an approved Charter. As at 31 March 2015, it comprises 

three members, all of whom are independent non-executive 
Trustees. 

KGFT’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Legal 
Risk and Compliance Officer and Chief Investment Officer 
as well as the Auditor-General for KwaZulu-Natal and the 
Internal Auditor, Ngubane & Co, attend the Audit and Risk 
Committee meetings by invitation. External and internal 
auditors have unrestricted access to the Chairman of the 
Audit and Risk Committee and may meet with the committee 
members without executive management present if required.

The committee had four meetings during the year under 
review where it assessed overall internal controls, financial 
internal controls and the reliability of financial statements 
arising from internal audit, compliance and external audit. 
The Audit and Risk Committee presided over the financial 
year end audit process and the fair presentation of the 
financial statements to the Board.

Attendance at the Audit and Risk Committee Meetings was as per the Table Below:
Members May 2014 June 2014 Oct 2014 Feb 2015
Professor Imtiaz Vally – Chairman ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Ms Delia Jay ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Mr Ravi Kalaichelvan (resigned with effect 3 June 2014) A N/A N/A N/A

Ms Zodwa Mbele (appointed with effect 3 June 2014) N/A ✓ ✓ ✓

✓ – Present | A – Absent with apology  

Composition
The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee 
comprises two independent, non-executive Trustees and 
an independent non-executive who is not a trustee and who 
is the Chairman of the committee. The committee operates 
in terms of an approved charter that requires that meetings 
are held at least twice a year. Four Human Resources and 
Remuneration Committee meetings were held in the period. 
Attendance at the meetings was as per the table below:

Members June 2014 Sep 2014 Oct 2014 Feb 2015
Ms Getty Simelane – Chairman ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Professor Imtiaz Vally – Member ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Ms Delia Jay – Member ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

✓ – Present 

HuMAN ReSOuRCeS ANd ReMuNeRATION 
COMMITTee
Objectives
The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee 
exercises oversight of matters related to human resource 
management and succession planning; develops and 
implements the human resource strategy; assists the Board in 
the development of remuneration policies, incentive policies 
and performance targets; as well as specific remuneration 
levels for KGFT. 
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INVeSTMeNT COMMITTee
Objectives
The Investment Committee evaluates and makes 
recommendations to the Board of Trustees with regard to the 
advancement or disposal of any loan in order to ensure a 
balanced portfolio is maintained. 

Composition
The Investment Committee comprises five members, two 

of whom are non-executive Trustees, two independent 
members who are representatives of the Lenders (SBSA and 
DBSA), and one additional independent person, appointed 
by the Trustees. Investment Committee members are 
appointed for a period of three years at a time and may not 
be appointed for more than two terms of office.

Five Investment Committee Meetings were Held in the Period. Attendance at the Meetings was as 
per the Table Below:

Members
Apr 2014 
(special) Jun 2014 Sep 2014 Oct 2014 Dec 2014

Mr Helge Switala – Chairman ✓✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Ms Phumzile Langeni – Member T ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Ms Dinao Lerutla – Independent Representative A T ✓ ✓ ✓

Mr M. Manwadu – Member, DBSA Representative T ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Ms H. Sathekge – Member, SBSA Representative ✓✓ T A A A

Mr Carl Henriksen – Member, SBSA Representative T N/A ✓ ✓ ✓

✓ – Present | A – Absent with apology | ✓✓ – Special Meeting | T – Present via telecom 

ANTI-FRAud ANd CORRuPTION
KGFT is committed to eradicating all forms of fraud and 
corruption. The PFMA requires that KGFT has in place 
a Fraud Prevention Plan that is approved by the Board of 
Trustees and submitted to EDTEA with KGFT’s Corporate 
Plan on an annual basis.

Measures in place to ensure that the risk of fraud is minimised 
include:

• The provision of fraud awareness training;
• Adherence to a culture of zero tolerance with regards to 

fraud and theft;
• Effective management and implementation of policies 

aimed at governing staff behaviour, including the 
Business Code of Conduct and Ethics and KGFT’s Fraud 
Prevention Plan;

• Conducting fraud risk assessments to highlight KGFT’s 
fraud risks, identify the controls in place to mitigate those 
risks, and formulate action plans in terms of identified 
gaps or weaknesses; and

• An independent ‘whistle-blowing’ service, enabling staff 
and other stakeholders to report fraud via a tip-off line.

KGFT’s management and employees have signed and 
committed to an anti-fraud declaration as a pledge to zero 

tolerance against fraud and corruption. Fraud risk is reported 
upon at each meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee.

There have been no incidents of fraud and corruption 
reported in the period, either directly to management or via 
the Whistleblowers hotline.

ReMuNeRATION OF THe BOARd OF 
TRuSTeeS
The Trustees are remunerated for the meetings they attend 
at rates approved by the EDTEA. No performance-based 
remuneration is paid to Trustees.

INTeRNAL AudIT
The Internal Audit function is responsible for providing 
independent, objective assurance on KGFT’s system of 
governance, risk management and internal control. KGFT 
has outsourced its internal audit function to Ngubane & 
Company, who have produced a rolling three-year strategic 
internal audit plan based on its assessment of KGFT’s key risk 
areas, with regard to its current operations, those proposed 
in its corporate plan and KGFT’s risk management strategy. 

Internal Audit reports to the Audit and Risk Committee on 
a quarterly basis, detailing performance against the audit 
plan and highlighting any findings or concerns. Internal Audit 
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co-ordinates with External Audit to ensure proper coverage 
and to minimise duplication, thereby ensuring combined 
assurance is given to address all the significant risks facing 
KGFT. A written assessment has been provided by Internal 
Audit on the effectiveness of KGFT’s systems of internal 
control and risk management.

eTHICS ANd MANAGING CONFLICTS OF 
INTeReST
KGFT has a Business Code of Conduct and Ethics in place 
that is intended to promote and enforce ethical behaviour 
and enhance professionalism in dealing with suppliers, 
customers, business partners, stakeholders, government 
and society at large. 

The Board conforms to KGFT’s Declaration of Interest Policy 
Framework that re-enforces KGFT’s commitment to ensure 
that the organisation is managed ethically and transparently 
in a manner that benefits all of its stakeholders. Declarations 
of interest are made on an annual basis and the Board, sub-
committee members and the executive management are 
required to disclose any potential conflicts at meetings of 

the Board and its committees. KGFT also has a Gifts and 
Inducement Policy, which requires that any gifts, given 
or received, over R500 are approved by the executive 
management and declared to the compliance function.

PROMOTION OF ACCeSS TO INFORMATION 
KGFT is committed to complying with the Promotion 
of Access to Information Act (PAIA), which supports 
important principles of good governance, transparency 
and accountability. The PAIA of 2000 gives effect to the 
constitutional right of access to any information held by the 
State and any information that is held by another person and 
that is required for the exercise or protection of any rights. 
KGFT has a PAIA Manual available on its website that details 
the process to be followed to request information. KGFT 
reports to the South African Human Rights Commission on 
an annual basis in terms of section 32 of the PAIA stating 
how many requests for information have been received from 
the public. There were no requests for information received 
in the 2014/2015 financial year.
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Managing Risk 20

The Board
• Overall responsibility for risk management;
• Ensure risk management is embedded into all processes and 

activities; and
• Review risk profile.

Audit & Risk Committee
• Set annual audit programme and priorities;
• Monitor progress with audit recommendations;
• Provide risk assurance to the Board; and
• Oversee RM structures and processes.

Internal & external Audit
• Provide risk assurance to the Board.

Risk Function
• Formulate strategy and policy based on risk appetite, risk attitudes 

and risk exposures;
• Receive reports from business functions, review risk management 

activities and compile the group risk register; and
• Track RM activity in the business functions and keep the risk 

management context under review.

Business Functions
• Produce business functions specific policy statements; 
• Identify, assess and manage day-to-day risk; 
• Set risk priorities for the business functions; and
• Monitor and implement risk improvements.

RISK GOVeRNANCe
The Board has committed KGFT to a process of risk 
management that is aligned to the principles of good 
corporate governance, as supported by the PFMA and the 
King III. 

The Board has the overall responsibility of risk management 
and ensuring that risk management is embedded into 
all processes and activities of the Fund. It is also the 
responsibility of the Board to review the Fund’s risk 

profile from time to time. The Audit and Risk Committee is 
mandated to oversee the implementation of the Fund’s ERM 
framework and assess key risk reports on a quarterly basis. 
Operational issues are included in the quarterly reports 
and are managed by the Executive Committee and the 
Management Committee. Internal Audit and External Audit 
provide independent assurance on effectiveness of risk 
management to the Board. Internal Audit is outsourced due 
to the size of the organisation.
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THe RISK ARCHITeCTuRe OF KZN GROWTH 
FuNd
KGFT risk is managed on three levels, namely strategic, 
operational and projects. Strategic risks are those risks that 
are mostly consequential to KGFT’s ability to execute its 
strategies and achieve its developmental mandate. These risk 
exposures can ultimately affect KGFT’s shareholder value or 
the viability of the organisation. Risk management functions 
performed by the Board of Directors and management at 
strategic level include definition of risk, determining risk 
appetite, formulating strategies and policies for managing 
risk and developing adequate systems and controls to 
ensure that overall risk remains within an acceptable level. 

Operational risk refers to risks inherent in KGFT’s operations 
and processes. These are emerging risks introduced by 
internal factors (such as employees, internal processes 
and systems, etc.) and external factors (such as suppliers, 
regulatory authorities, the economic climate, etc.).

Enterprise risk management, which encompasses operational 
risk, is managed by the Risk function, while regulatory 
risk are managed by the Compliance function. Enterprise 
risk management activities are performed by the relevant 
business units and are entrenched through adherence to 
operational procedures and guidelines set by management. 
Operational risk management strategies and policies are 
used in conjunction with delegated powers of authority, 
which detail the authority levels for various transactions.

Project risk are risks that could impact the progress, result 
or outcome of specific projects funded by KGFT that would 

result in deviations in expected returns on individual project 
or impact on the planned outcomes of specific value-creating 
initiatives. Project risk assessments are performed to identify 
key risks that could impact on the progress, result or 
outcome of a specific project and actions that are designed 
to adequately mitigate the risks identified and put in place. 
The implementation and effectiveness of planned actions 
are monitored throughout the duration of the project by the 
Projects and Credit divisions and are reported through project 
governance structures. Project risks are also managed 
through by adherence to the Investment and Credit Policies 
and business process procedure approved by the Trust. 

Credit and Investment Risk Management
The Board has delegated the responsibility for the management 
of credit and investment risk to its IC. The Board has also 
delegated the approval of Initial Screening Reports to the 
Management Committee in order to facilitate speedy turnaround 
times and to enhance the competitiveness of the Fund.

The IC acts in an independent manner and advises the 
Board of KGFT, to ensure that KGFT’s development mandate 
of unlocking KZN growth, promoting B-BBEE and creating 
sustainable jobs in the KZN economy, are met. The IC is 
responsible for ensuring that extensive due diligence is done 
on projects requiring funding and recommending projects 
for Approval to the Board. The IC is also tasked with the 
duty to oversee the management of projects performance 
after disbursements to ensure that the Fund maintains a 
healthy credit portfolio. The Fund always strives to maintain 
a balance between its developmental mandate and the 
expected returns and risk appetite of its stakeholders.
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KGFT RISK uNIVeRSe
The nature of the business of KGFT exposes it to the following categories of risk activities:

Market Risk is the risk that the value of an investment will 
decrease due to moves in market prices, interest rates, 
exchange rates, market volatilities and competitive mix, i.e. 
the possibility that the market price of an asset may change, 
resulting in a capital gain or loss to KGFT upon subsequent 
realisation of the asset.

OPeRATIONAL RISK
Information, Communication and Technology (ICT) Risk 
is the risk of failures in system support including errors in 
the development of programmes, inadequate or untimely 
management information and inadequate security and 
contingency planning.

Operational Risk (including People Risk) do not have a 
‘direct’ financial impact as compared to the pure financial 
risks such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk and credit risk. 
Operational risk is the risk resulting from inadequate or 
failed internal processes, people and systems (inefficient or 
ineffective), or from external events resulting in financial loss. 
People risk is defined as possible inadequacies in human 
capital. This may stem from a lack of adequate skills or 
knowledge, a reward system that fails to motivate properly or 
loss of key staff due to uncertainty. 

FINANCIAL RISK
Credit (Counterparty) Risk is the risk of an asset, in the form 
of a money claim or equivalent, against a third party, which 
may not result in a cash receipt or equivalent in accordance 
with the terms of the agreement giving rise to a claim, i.e. 
the risk of loss due to a third party defaulting on a contract, 
or more generally the risk of loss due to some ‘credit event’.

Interest Rate Risk is the potential variability that KGFT is 
exposed to owing to changes in the level of interest rates. 

Liquidity Risk is the risk to a company’s earnings and capital 
arising from its inability to timely meet obligations when 
they come due without incurring unacceptable losses, i.e. 
the possibility of KGFT being unable to meet obligations, 
repayments and withdrawals at the proper place and time.

Interest Rate Risk is the potential variability that KGFT is 
exposed to owing to changes in the level of interest rates. 

Solvency Risk relates to the possibility of KGFT being unable 
to sustain its business activities and to meet commitments, 
repayments and withdrawals at the proper time and place as 
a result of it having accumulating liabilities that in aggregate 
exceeds the fair value of its assets.

FINANCIAL RISK

Credit (Counterparty) Risk Information, Communication  
and Technology (ICT) Risk Reputational Risk 

Operational Risk (including  
People Risk) Regulatory Risk

Legal and Third Party Risk 
environmental Health and  

Safety Risk 

Business Continuity Planning Fraud, Theft and Abuse

Interest Rate Risk

Liquidity Risk

Solvency Risk

Market Risk

OPeRATIONAL RISK BuSINeSS RISK
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Legal and Third Party Risk arises from the potential that 
unenforceable contracts, lawsuits, or adverse judgements 
can disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or 
condition of KGFT.

Business Continuity Planning is the process whereby 
an organisation ensures the maintenance or recovery of 
operations, including services to customers when confronted 
with adverse events such as natural disasters, technological 
failures, human error and terrorism.

BuSINeSS RISK
Reputational Risk is the potential that negative publicity 
regarding KGFT’s business practices or internal controls, 
whether true or not, which could have an impact on the 
liquidity or capital of KGFT, or cause a decline in the customer 
base, costly litigation or revenue erosion or reductions.

Regulatory Risk is the risk associated with the potential for 
laws related to a given industry, country or type of security to 
change and impact relevant investments.

Environmental Health and Safety Risk is the risk associated 
with the economic or administrative consequences of slow or 
catastrophic environmental pollution, hazards and the safety 
of persons in connection with the use of plant and machinery, 
the protection of persons against hazards to health and 
safety arising out of or in connection with the activities of 
persons at work.

Fraud, Theft and Abuse is the risk of unlawful and intentional 
misappropriation by persons internal or external to the 
organisation, or an act that causes actual prejudice or which 
is potentially prejudicial to others.

Compliance Risk is the risk that procedures implemented 
by KGFT to ensure compliance with the relevant statutory, 
regulatory and supervisory requirements are not adhered to 
and/or is inefficient and/or ineffective.

MANAGING RISK
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk is the risk that KGFT will be unable to service 
payment obligations timeously. The nature and type of 
business that KGFT engages in exposes it to the following 
liquidity risks:

• Inability to repay borrowings;

• Inability to meet lending commitments; and

• Payments of excessive premiums above market rates in 
order to attract funds.

The Trust’s Finance Department manages liquidity on a 
projected cash flow basis. The key focus areas in managing 
liquidity risk involves the continuous monitoring of actual and 
projected cash flows and maintenance of a liquidity buffer  to 
fund unforeseen cash flows. 

Liquidity risk management strategies and processes include:

• Preparing cash flow projections regularly to assess 
available cash against cash requirements; 

• Maintaining a buffer of liquid assets in short-term 
investments; 

• Projected cash inflow and outflow estimates and thus, 
the net deficit or surplus over a time horizon;

• Liquidity risk is measured by conducting an analysis of 
net funding requirements. Net funding requirements are 
determined by analysing future cash flows based on the 
assumptions of the expected behaviour of assets and 
liabilities. Our liquidity position is continuously monitored 
through the Financial Fund Model (FFM) by our Executive 
Committee, who then reports on extracts of the FFM to 
the Audit & Risk Committee quarterly.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the current and prospective risk to 
earnings or capital arising from movements in interest rates. 
Interest rate risk to KGFT may arise due to:

• The margin between the interest rates earned on assets 
and paid on liabilities;

• The repricing potential of assets and liabilities at 
different points in time, resulting in mismatches in 
various time bands between the contractual repricing of 
assets and liabilities; and

• The period over which these differences persist.

Interest rate risk is the responsibility of the Executive 
Committee at management level and Audit & Risk Committee 
at Board level. Interest rate risk management strategy 
manages placement of funds and the balance between risk 
and return, taking into account our view on interest rates. 
Medium- to long-term strategy return includes initiatives to 
reduce exposure to interest rate risk.

Concentration Risk
Funds available for investment are split between various 
banking institutions, with a minimum of 90% of funds being 
invested with banking institutions with a long-term rating of 
‘BBB’ or above or short-term rating of F3 or above as listed by 
Fitch ratings agency, with the exception of Ithala SOC Limited 
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as approved by the Board of Trustees. No more than 25% of 
KGFT investments can be placed with only one institution at a 
time. 

Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate 
or failed processes or systems, human factors or external 
events.

Operational risk is managed through the implementation 
of appropriate internal control systems, supported by staff 
training. Clearly defined and documented operational policies 
and procedures in the form of key controls and procedures 
are maintained and made available to all staff members. To 
ensure that the policies and procedures and control mandates 
meet KGFT’s requirements, both statutory and commercial, 
the policies, key controls and procedures are subject to 
review by management and appropriate risk committees to 
ensure ongoing development and maintenance of sound and 
prudent operational risk policies and procedures.

The executive management is responsible for the practical 
implementation of the principles of operational risk 
management and monitoring thereof at departmental level. 
The executive management is also responsible for the 
development and maintenance of the procedures for the 
management of operational risks related to KGFT’s products, 
services, functions, processes and systems

Insurance Risk
The Trust’s assets are covered by the relevant insurance 
policies to minimise losses. These insurance policies are 
reviewed annually.

Business Continuity Management
The Trust maintains business continuity plans that are tested 
annually, IT back up is done on a daily basis, and the files are 
kept at a separate site. 

Technology Risk
Technology risk is the risk of failures in systems, errors in 
the development of programmes, inadequate or inaccurate 
management information, as well as inadequate security and 
contingency planning. Technology is key to KGFT’s business 
and hence it’s imperative for us to maintain disaster recovery 
polices and plans that give guidance to operations in the 
case of disruption. These plans are tested on an annual basis 
and are adjusted in line with changes in operations, services 
and strategy. 

Compliance Risk
Compliance risk is the current and prospective risk of 

damage to KGFT’s business model or objectives, reputation 
and financial soundness arising from non-adherence with 
regulatory requirements and expectations of key stakeholders 
such as customers, employees and society as a whole.

Compliance risk therefore not only exposes KGFT to fines, 
civil claims, loss of authorisation to operate and an ability to 
enforce contracts, but also to reputational damage. 

KGFT has a dedicated compliance function whose role is 
to assist management in discharging their responsibilities 
to comply with applicable regulatory requirements. The 
compliance function assists through the identification, 
assessment, management, monitoring and reporting of 
compliance risks faced by KGFT. The regulatory universe is 
reviewed and approved on an annual basis and identifies the 
core legislation applicable to KGFT.

Credit Risk Exposure
The primary focus of risk management is to identify and 
assess all risks directly associated with the project with a 
view to determine how well the project can sustain ongoing 
commercial operations and service its obligations on time 
and in full.

As a development finance institution, the KGFT is exposed 
to credit risk in its credit portfolio. Credit risk constitutes the 
company’s primary source of risk and therefore, it is required 
to significantly manage credit risk throughout the stages of 
the credit lifecycle and value chain to ensure that it delivers 
on its mandate while remaining financially sustainable in 
its project finance investments and interventions. Rigorous 
focus on the fundamentals of risk management is critical for 
the success of any financial institution.

KGFT’s approach to risk management is based on well-
established governance processes and includes the full 
involvement of the Board of Trustees, Investment Committee 
and KGFT’s Management Committee, supported by policies, 
procedures and systems.

Credit risk management activities are performed at four 
distinct stages in KGFT, namely initial acceptance of the 
credit application; initial screening; and final appraisal and 
post-investment, guided mainly by KGFT’s investment, 
credit and loan pricing policies and relevant South African 
legislative and regulatory requirements. 

The investment policy sets out the basis on which 
investments to be made by the Fund are approved as well as 
the procedure to be followed for the Investment Committee 
(IC) to make investment recommendations to the Board of 
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Trustees of the Fund for their final approval. 

The aim of the Investment Policy is to establish primarily 
whether a proposed investment meets the credit criteria set 
out in the credit policy and satisfies the Fund’s development 
mandate. 

The credit policy provides a framework for the evaluation 
of all new and existing credit exposures, as well as the 
management, control and monitoring of such exposures 
with the goal of appropriately providing a risk-reward profile 
by maintaining credit risk exposures within acceptable and 
agreed parameters. 

The loan pricing policy provides the basis for calculating the 
pricing of the loans and sets in place an internal methodology 
and business process for determining the loan pricing 
strategy in relation to best practice, regulation and legislation 
relevant to the business.

Initial Acceptance Stage of the Credit Application
Risk assessment, in terms of the relevant and initial credit 
risk criteria to determine whether the application can 
be considered for further appraisal at the next phase, is 
conducted by the Projects Department headed by the 
executive management. 

Initial Screening Report (ISR) Stage 
In terms of the Fund’s Credit Policy, credit applications that 
are deemed fundable by the projects team are subjected 
to an approval process and entails further risk assessment, 
consistent with the investment and credit policies. 

The Board of Trustees has delegated the approval of initial 
screening reports to KGFT’s Management Committee 
(MANCO) in order to facilitate quick turnaround times and to 
enhance the competitiveness of the Fund. 

Final Appraisal Report (FAR) Stage 
Once the ISR has been approved by the Management 
Committee of KGFT, due diligence is performed on the 
project for further risk assessment and sustainability of the 
project to facilitate FAR appraisal. The IC is responsible for 
ensuring that extensive due diligence has been done on 

projects requiring funding, and recommending projects for 
approval to the Board of Trustees. 

The project promoters further submit required and relevant 
project support information to proceed with the final appraisal 
report. At this stage, KGFT performs searches using Windeed, 
Dow Jones and other available risk and compliance search 
tools to identify further risks, and if MANCO is satisfied, the 
final appraisal report (FAR) is submitted to the IC for further 
review. 

The Investment Committee initially approves the project by 
recommending the FAR to the Board for further assessment 
and final approval. 

Post-investment Stage
Credit portfolio management is a critical element in 
maintaining the safety and soundness of all disbursed funds. 
KGFT has an effective system in place to identify, measure, 
monitor and control risk as part of an overall approach to risk 
management. 

The Investment Committee of KGFT is also tasked with 
the duty to oversee the management of projects and 
performance after disbursements to ensure that the Fund 
maintains a healthy credit portfolio. 

The established credit policy provides guidelines and 
a foundation for sound loan portfolio management and 
includes, among other controls, the following: 

• Compliance with facility agreements;
• Internal portfolio risk rating;
• Monitoring disbursed funds by means of periodic 

reports from the project’s management accounts to 
assess the project performance; 

• Annual valuation of securities held; 
• Monitor events that may lead to repayment default;
• Risk classification and provisioning of loans; and
• Periodic review of credit processes and credit policy, 

audit reviews as well as loan recovery strategies.

Reports on portfolio risk management are submitted to KGFT 
executives, MANCO and the Board of Trustee for review.
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report of the Audit 
and Risk Committee
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The Audit and Risk Committee is a committee of the Board 
of Trustees and it assists the Board through advising and 
making submissions on financial reporting, oversight of the 
risk management process and internal financial controls, 
external and internal audit functions and statutory and 
regulatory compliance of the Trust.

The Audit and Risk Committee has adopted appropriate 
formal terms of reference as its Audit and Risk Committee 
Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this 
Charter, and has discharged all its responsibilities as 
contained therein.

The Audit and Risk Committee Members and their Attendance at Meetings are as Follows: 
Name of Audit and Risk Committee 
Member

Type of 
Appointment

Date of 
Appointment

Number of 
Meetings Held

Number of 
Meetings 
Attended

Prof. I.A.S. Vally (Chairman) Trustee 2013-11-01 4 4

Ms D. Jay Trustee 2013-11-01 4 4

Mr R. Kalaichelvan (member)ᶺ Trustee 2013-11-01 4 0

Ms Z. Mbele* Trustee 2014-06-03 4 3
ᶺ Tendered resignation – and was deregistered by the Master’s Office on 3 June 2014.
* Appointment – was registered by the Master’s Office on 3 June 2014.

The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, 
Executives of the Trust and representatives from the external 
and internal auditors attend the committee meetings by 
invitation only. The internal and external auditors have 
unrestricted access to the Audit and Risk Committee 
Chairman.

AudIT ANd RISK COMMITTee 
ReSPONSIBILITY
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has complied 
with its responsibilities arising from section 51(1)(a) of the 
PFMA and Treasury Regulations section 21.1.10(b) and (c) 
and section 27.1.7.

Section 51(1)(a) of the PFMA states the following:

The Accounting Authority must ensure that the public entity 
has and maintains: 

i. Effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial 
and risk management and internal control;

ii. A system of internal audit under the control and direction 
of an Audit and Risk Committee complying with and 
operating in accordance with regulations and instructions 
prescribed in terms of section 76 and 77; and

iii. An appropriate procurement and provisioning system 
that is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost-
effective.

Statutory Duties
In execution of its statutory duties during the past financial 
year, the Audit and Risk Committee:

• Believes that the appointment of the Auditor-General 
of South Africa (AG) as the auditor complies with the 
relevant provisions of the Trust Property Control Act and 
the Public Finance Management Act;

• Determined the fees to be paid to the AG as disclosed in 
note 16 of the financial statements;

• Determined in terms of engagement of the external 
auditor;

• Reviewed the quality of financial information;
• Reviewed the Integrated Report and Financial 

Statements;
• Received no complaints relating to the accounting 

practices and internal/external audit of KGFT, the content 
or auditing of its financial statements, the internal financial 
controls of the Trust, and any other related matters;
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• Made the submission to the Board matters concerning 
the Trust’s accounting policies, financial control, records 
and reporting; and

• Concurs that the adoption of the going concern basis of 
preparation in the financial statements is appropriate.

Oversight of Risk Management
The Audit and Risk Committee has satisfied itself that the 
following areas have been appropriately addressed:

• Financial reporting risks;
• Internal financial controls;
• Fraud risk as it relates to financial reporting; and
• IT risk as it relates to financial reporting.

Internal Financial Controls
The Audit and Risk Committee has:

• Reviewed the effectiveness of the Trust’s system of 
internal financial controls, including receiving assurance 
from management, internal audit and external;

• Reviewed significant issues raised by the internal and 
external audit process;

• Reviewed policies and procedures for preventing and 
detecting fraud; and

• No significant cases of misconduct or fraud or any 
other unethical activity by employees of the Trust have 
been brought to the attention of the Audit and Risk 
Committee. 

Based on the processes and assurances obtained, KGFT 
believes that significant internal financial controls are 
effective.

Regulatory Compliance
The Audit and Risk Committee has:

• Reviewed the effectiveness of the system for monitoring 
compliance with laws and regulations.

external Audit
The Audit and Risk Committee has:

• Reviewed the external audit scope to ensure that the 
critical areas of the business are being addressed; and

• Reviewed the external auditors report including issues 
arising out of the external audit.

The external auditors have furthermore provided written 
assurance to the Audit and Risk Committee that they have 
remained independent of KGFT.

Internal Audit
The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the activities of 
the internal audit function to determine its effectiveness and 
to ensure that no unjustified restrictions or limitations were 
made. 

The Committee has also reviewed the internal audit reports, 
including the responses of management to issues raised 
therein. 

Based on the scope and results of their work, and subject to 
the limitations of sampling and audit risk, internal audit is of 
the opinion that key controls implemented by management 
appear to indicate that an adequate control framework is 
in place, however; implementation requires continuous 
attention in certain key control activities to provide 
reasonable assurance that residual risk areas reported are 
properly mitigated and controlled.

The Quality of In-year Management and Monthly and 
Quarterly Reports Submitted in Terms of the PFMA
The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied with the content 
and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and 
issued by the Board of Trustees and management of the 
Trust during the year under review.

Finance Function
The Audit and Risk Committee believes that the Chief 
Financial Officer, Mr I. Abdoola, possesses the appropriate 
expertise and experience to meet his responsibilities in 
that position. The Committee is furthermore satisfied with 
the expertise and adequacy of resources within the finance 
function. 

Based on the processes and assurances obtained, the Audit 
and Risk Committee believes that the accounting practices 
are effective.

The Audit and Risk Committee has discussed the conclusions 
of the External Auditors on the annual financial statements, 
read together with the report of the External Auditors, and 
recommend these to the Board of Trustees for acceptance.

On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee
Prof. I.A.S. Vally



54
THE KZN GROWTH FUND TRUST

Trustees’ responsibility and 
Approval of the Financial statements
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Mr S. Adam
Chief Executive Officer

Ms D. Hlatshwayo 
Chairman of KGFT

The Trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements of KZN Growth 
Fund Trust, comprising the Statement of Financial Position 
as at 31 March 2015, the Statements of Comprehensive 
Income, Changes in Equity and Cash Flows for the year then 
ended, Notes to the Financial Statements, which include 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes, and the Trustee’s Report, in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
the financial provisions of the Trust Deed. In addition, the 
Trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees Report.

To enable the Trustees to meet these responsibilities:

• The Board and management set standards and 
management implements systems of internal controls 
and accounting and information systems aimed 
at providing reasonable assurance that assets are 
safeguarded and the risk of fraud, error or loss is reduced 
in a cost-effective manner. These controls, contained 
in established policies and procedures, include the 
proper delegation of responsibilities and authorities 
within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting 
procedures and adequate segregation of duties.

• The internal audit function, which operates unimpeded 
and independently from operational management, and 
has unrestricted access to the Audit and Risk Committee, 
appraises and, when necessary, recommends 
improvements in the system of internal controls and 
accounting practices, based on audit plans that take 
cognisance of the relative degrees of risk of each function 
or aspect of the business.

• The Audit and Risk Committee, together with the Internal 
Audit department, plays an integral role in matters 
relating to financial and internal control, accounting 
policies, reporting and disclosure.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, based on the above, 
the Trustees are satisfied that no material breakdown in the 
operation of the system of internal control and procedure has 
occurred during the year under review.

The Trust consistently adopts appropriate and recognised 
accounting policies and these are supported by reasonable 
judgements and estimates on a consistent basis and 
provides additional disclosures when compliance with 
the specific requirements in accordance with IFRS are 
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of 
particular transactions, other events and conditions on the 
Trust’s financial position and financial performance.

The Trust’s responsibility also includes maintaining 
adequate accounting records and an effective system of 
risk management. All employees are required to maintain 
the highest ethical standards in ensuring that the Trust’s 
practices are concluded in a manner, which in all reasonable 
circumstances is above reproach.

The Trustees have made an assessment of the Trust’s 
ability to continue as a going concern and have included 
appropriate disclosure in the Trustee’s report. 

The basis of accounting has been adopted by the Board of 
Trustees after having made enquiries of management and 
given due consideration to information presented to the 
Board, including budgets and cash flow projections for the 
year ahead and key assumptions and accounting policies 
relating thereto. Accordingly, the Trustees have no reason to 
believe that KGFT will not continue as a going concern in the 
year ahead.

Approval of Audited Annual Financial Statements
The Annual Financial Statements of KZN Growth Fund Trust, 
as identified in the first paragraph, were approved by the 
Board of Trustees on 13 July 2015 and are signed on its 
behalf by:
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The Trustees have pleasure in presenting this report as part 
of the audited financial statements of KZN Growth Fund 
Trust (‘Trust’) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

1. Nature of Business
The Trust was registered with the Pietermaritzburg 
High Court on 22 October 2007. The main objectives 
of the Trust are to provide support for creating an 
enabling environment for activities that creates jobs 
and accelerates the economic development of the KZN 
Province while promoting Broad Based Black Economic 
Empowerment. 

In order to achieve its objectives, the Trust has set up 
KGFT as a closed, pooled structured debt fund.

2. Business Model
Private Partnership (PPP) Model of Debt Fund
The current Fund size of R787.5m is made up of 
R362.5m capital contribution by the EDTEA and R425m 
in debt facilities from SBSA and the DBSA, as noted in 
the Business Model section above. Capital contribution 
represents 46% of the total fund.

The Trust has disbursed a total of R480.7m to four 
projects. A further project totalling R63.4m has been 
approved by the Board of Trustees for disbursement. 
In addition, one project still has a R20m approved 
facility that is available for draw down. Hence, a funding 
commitment of approximately R223.4m still needs to 
be appraised and disbursed.

Future En-commandite Partnership Model of New 
Fund
With the existence of the current fund drawing to a 
close, the Trust intends to set up an en-commandite (or 
limited liability) partnership to manage future funds. In 
terms of the revision in the model, Lenders were prepaid 
on 31 March 2015, thereby unencumbering the fund. 

3.  Financial Results and Lending Activities for 
the Year ended 31 March 2015
The financial results of the Trust are fully disclosed on 
pages 60 to 92. 

The key financial indicators for the year under review 
are: 

• Net operating income amounts to R75.2m 
(2014:R29.1m) and the net surplus in the current 
year amounts to R50.5m (2014:R7.4m). The majority 
of the interest received arose from project loans and 
advances.

• Assets under management increased from R814.3m 
in 2014 to R962.0m as at 31 March 2015. 

4.  High Level Overview of the Performance of 
the Trust
During the year, three new projects were approved for 
funding by the Trust. Accordingly, the project portfolio 
consists of four disbursed projects (including an existing 
project that was refinanced during the year) with a total 
disbursement amount of R290m in the current year and 
one approved but not yet disbursed project amounting 
to R63.4m. 

The promoters are working on fulfilling the conditions 
precedent on the latter. The uncommitted balance of 
the Fund amounts to R223.4m while the current project 
pipeline consists of projects in the sum of R1,148m, 
which are still being appraised.

5.  Capital Contribution and Reserves
There were no changes to the capital contribution of the 
Trust during the financial year.

General reserve totalling R104m was provided by 
the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government. Amounts 
received related to the settlement subsidy received for 
the repayment of a previous lender (INCA) on their exit 
from the Fund as well as benefits received as a result of 
the waiver of amounts payable on the acquisition of the 
net assets of the Fund Manager.

6. Board of Trustees and its Sub-committees
In accordance with the Trust Deed there shall, at all 
times, be seven Trustees comprising three Trustees 
nominated by the Lenders, three Trustees nominated 
and appointed by the Government acting through the 
Department of Economic Development, Tourism & 
Environmental Affairs, and the Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) by reason of appointment as CEO. 

The Trust has three Sub-committees, namely the 
Investment Committee, the Audit and Risk Committee 
and the HR Committee. 

TRUSTEES’ REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2015
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The Trustees and Other Committee Members in Office During the Year Under Review are as Follows:

Name of Member Date of 
Appointment

Date of 
Resignation

Board of 
Trustees

Investment 
Committee

Audit & Risk
Committee

HR 
Committee

TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS 8 5 4 4

Ms D. Hlatswayo  
(Chairman of Trust) 2013-11-01 N/A 8 N/A N/A N/A

Mr H. Switala 
(Deputy Chairman of Trust)
(Chairman of Investment Committee) 2013-11-01 N/A 8 5 N/A N/A

Mr M.S.A. Badurally Adam  
(Chief Executive Officer) 2013-11-01 N/A 8 N/A N/A N/A

Prof. I.A.S. Vally
(Chairman of Audit & Risk Committee) 2013-11-01 N/A 8 N/A 4 4

Ms D. Jay 2013-11-01 N/A 8 N/A 4 4

Mr R. Kalaichelvan 2013-11-01 2014-06-03 0 N/A 0 N/A

Ms Z. Mbele* 2014-06-03 N/A 6 N/A 3 N/A

Ms P. Langeni 2013-11-01 N/A 6 5 N/A N/A

Ms H. Sathekge/Mr C. Henriksen 2013-11-01 N/A N/A 5 N/A N/A

Ms D. Lerutla 2013-11-01 N/A N/A 4 N/A N/A

Mr M. Manwadu 2013-11-01 N/A N/A 5 N/A N/A

Ms K.P.M. Simelane  
(Chairman of HR Committee) 2013-11-01 N/A 3 N/A N/A 4

*In attendance by invitation for one meeting before appointment as Trustee

TrusTEEs’ rEporT (cont.)
For the year ended 31 March 2015

The Trustees’ and other committee members’ 
emoluments are determined by EDTEA and are set out 
in note 17 of the financial statements. The Trustees’ 
relationship with related parties are disclosed in note 25 
of the financial statements.

7. Trust Secretary
The Trust has an inhouse secretariat function that 
collectively fulfils the role of the Trust secretary.

8. Going Concern
The Trustees have no reason to believe that the Trust 
will not be a going concern in the future, based on the 
Trust’s funding forecasts and projected strategic plans.

9. Auditors
The Auditor-General South Africa serves as independent 
auditor as appointed by the Trustees.

10. Subsequent events
No events were identified subsequent to year end 
that require adjustment or disclosure in the financial 
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEES 
OF THE KZN GROWTH FUND TRUST
Report of the Auditor-General to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature on KZN Growth Fund Trust

Report on the Financial Statements

Introduction 
1. I have audited the financial statements of the KZN 

Growth Fund Trust set out on pages 60 to 92, which 
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 
March 2015, the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, as well as the 
Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting Authority’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements
2. The Board of trustees, which constitutes the 

accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and for such internal control as the 
accounting authority determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor-General’s Responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

financial statements based on my audit. I conducted 
my audit in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with 
ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the trust’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Trust’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.

Opinion 
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in 

all material respects, the financial position of the KZN 
Growth Fund Trust as at 31 March 2015 and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in 
accordance with IFRS.

Internal Control
7. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 

financial statements. I did not identify any significant 
deficiencies in internal control.

Other Report
Audit-related Services and Special Audit

8. An agreed upon procedures engagement was 
performed on the reported information relating to 
the performance of the trust against predetermined 
objectives. The reported performance was evaluated 
against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 
The report covered the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 
2015, and was issued to the trustees on 22 July 2015.

Pietermaritzburg
24 July 2015
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 March 2015

2015 2014

Notes R R
Assets

Non-current assets 348 380 531 106 403 047

Property, plant and equipment 2 1 811 977 1 726 205

Intangible assets 3 469 254 683 883

Loans and advances 4 346 099 300 103 992 959

Current assets 613 667 653 707 986 405

Cash and cash equivalents 5 594 784 041 607 999 730

Trade and other receivables 6 1 565 951 1 908 821

Short-term portion of loans and advances 4 17 317 661 98 077 854

Total assets 962 048 184 814 389 452

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders 511 629 944 216 058 044

Capital contribution 7 317 636 171 72 636 171

Debt service reserve 7 - 9 580 958

General reserve 7 104 319 277 104 319 277

Accumulated surplus 89 674 496 29 521 638

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities 448 081 592 573 594 438

Deferred funds 8 447 783 660 531 792 555

Finance lease liability 9 19 960 98 332

Long-term portion of provisions 10 277 972 341 172

Loans and borrowings 11 - 41 362 379

Current liabilities 2 336 648 24 736 970

Trade and other payables 12 1 799 032 6 399 083

Short-term portion of finance lease liability 9 106 864 77 078

Short-term portion of provisions 10 430 752 378 608

Short-term portion of loans and borrowings 11 - 17 882 201

Total equity and liabilities 962 048 184 814 389 452
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014

Notes R R
Interest income 13 55 126 448 38 549 177

Interest expense 14 (3 136 157) (9 385 245)

Net margin 51 990 291 29 163 932

Raising fee 900 000 -

Reversal of impairment on loans and advances  4 22 313 332 -

Net operating income 75 203 623 29 163 932

Other income 15 3 363 209 12 366 549

Operating expenses 16 (27 994 932) (34 115 536)

Operating surplus for the year 50 571 900 7 414 945

Other comprehensive income for the year - -

Total comprehensive income 50 571 900 7 414 945
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Year ended 31 March 2015

Capital  
Contri-
butions

Debt 
Service 
Reserve 

(DSR)

General 
Reserve

Accumulated
Surplus Total

Notes R R R R R

2014

Balance at 1 April 2013 72 636 171 21 333 637 - 10 354 014 104 323 822

Realisation of unutilised debt service reserve - (9 238 745) - 9 238 745 -

Transfer of previously recognised debt service - (2 513 934) - 2 513 934 -

Settlement received for repayment of INCA - - 48 000 000 - 48 000 000

Acquisition of net assets of Fund Manager - - 56 319 277 - 56 319 277

Total comprehensive income - - - 7 414 945 7 414 945

Balance at 31 March 2014 72 636 171 9 580 958 104 319 277 29 521 638 216 058 044

2015

Balance at 1 April 2014 72 636 171 9 580 958 104 319 277 29 521 638 216 058 044

Release of DSR on final settlement of lenders 7 - (9 580 958) - 9 580 958 -

Capital disbursed to projects 245 000 000 - - - 245 000 000

Total comprehensive income - - - 50 571 900 50 571 900

Balance at 31 March 2015 317 636 171 - 104 319 277 89 674 496 511 629 944



63
INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

KZN GROWTH FUND TRUST  
IT1437/2007 (PMB)

Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014

Notes R R

Cash generated by operating activities 24 831 135 9 574 247

Cash outflows from operating activities 19 (27 159 156) (19 589 685)

Interest received 13 55 126 448 38 549 177

Interest paid 14 (3 136 157) (9 385 245)

Cash utilised in investing activities (711 947) (65 444)

Purchase of fixed assets 2 (648 192) (49 428)

Purchase of intangible assets 3 (65 857) (36 016)

Proceeds on sale of assets 2 102 20 000

Cash (utilised in)/generated by financing activities (37 334 877) 572 533 582

Increase in capital contribution 7 245 000 000 -

Increase in general reserve 7 - 104 319 277

(Decrease)/increase in deferred funds 8 (84 008 895) 531 792 555

Decrease in long-term borrowings 11 (59 244 580) (72 698 744)

(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances 4 (139 032 816) 9 149 238

Decrease in finance lease 9 (48 586) (28 744)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (13 215 689) 582 042 385

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 5 607 999 730 25 957 345

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 5 594 784 041 607 999 730
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1. ACCOuNTING POLICIeS
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of 
these financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated.

1.1. Reporting entity
KwaZulu-Natal Growth Fund Trust (the ‘Trust’) is a 
Trust domiciled in South Africa. It was established in 
accordance with the Trust Deed, registered by the High 
Court in Pietermaritzburg on 22 October 2007, and duly 
amended by the revised Trust Deed as registered in 
January 2014.

The audited financial statements were approved by the 
Board of Trustees at their meeting held on 13 July 2015.

1.2. Basis of Preparation
1.2.1. Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis utilising the historical cost concept except 
for financial instruments at fair value through profit or 
loss, which are measured at amortised cost. This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future 
operations and that the realisation of assets and the 
settlement of liabilities will occur in the ordinary course 
of business. 

1.2.2. Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in South African 
Rand, which is the Trust’s functional currency.

1.2.3. Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the Trust as at and for the year 
ended 31 March 2015 have been prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
financial provisions of the Trust Deed.

1.2.4. Use of Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other factors that are 

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results of which form the basis of making the judgments 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates 
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which the estimate is revised and future 
periods’ revisions affect both current and future periods.

1.2.5. Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year relate to the following:

Going Concern
Management has made an assessment of the Trust’s 
ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied 
that it has the resources to continue in business for 
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is 
not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast 
significant doubt upon the Trust’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements 
continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Impairment of Loans and Advances
Loans and advances are stated after the deduction of 
provisions for credit impairment. Loans and advances 
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Loans 
and advances are impaired and impairment losses are 
incurred if there is objective evidence of impairment, 
resulting from one or more loss events that occurred after 
initial recognition, which indicates that it is probable, thus 
the Trust will be unable to realise all amounts due. The 
carrying amount of a financial asset identified as impaired 
is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount. 

The amount of the provision is the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the value of estimates 
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest 
rate ruling on the date of the review. The impairment of 
non-performing loans and advances is based on periodic 
evaluations of loans and advances and takes account of 
past loss experience and the economic climate in which 
the borrowers operate. 
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1.2. Basis of Preparation (cont.)
1.2.5. Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions 
Impairment of Loans and Advances (cont.)
Once all reasonable attempts have been made at 
collection and there is no realistic prospect of recovering 
outstanding amounts, an advance is written off against 
the related impairment. Loans and advances impairments 
and any subsequent reversals thereof or recoveries 
of amounts previously written off are either charged or 
credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

1.2.6. Changes in Accounting Policies
Equipment is depreciated over its estimated useful lives, 
taking into account residual values, where appropriate. 
The remaining useful lives of assets and residual values 
are assessed annually. 

1.3. Significant Accounting Policies
1.3.1. Equipment
Equipment is stated at cost. Cost includes all costs directly 
attributable to bringing the assets to working condition 
for their intended use. The assets are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis at rates that will reduce the historical 
costs to estimated residual values over their anticipated 
useful lives. 

The residual value of assets is the estimated amount that 
the Trust would currently obtain from disposal of assets 
after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, as if 
the asset was already at the age and in the condition 
expected at the end of its useful life.

Equipment acquired under finance lease arrangements 
are capitalised. Such assets are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis at rates considered appropriate to 
reduce the capitalised cost to estimated residual value 
over the anticipated useful lives of the assets. 

Lease finance charges are amortised over the duration 
of the finance leases using the effective interest rate 
method.

A review of asset values, residual values and impairment 
is performed at the Statement of Financial Position 
dates each year and adjusted, if appropriate. Impairment 
losses are determined as the excess of the carrying 
amount of items of property, plant and equipment over 
the recoverable amount and are charged to profit or loss.

Depreciation has been provided on a straight-line basis, 
based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as 
follows:

Leasehold improvements 3 years

Computer equipment 3-5 years

Office equipment 5-7 years

Furniture and fittings 6-8 years

Portable communication devices 2 years

Subsequent expenditure incurred on items of property, 
plant and equipment is only capitalised to the extent 
that such expenditure enhances the value or previous 
capacity of those assets. Repairs and maintenance not 
deemed to enhance the economic benefits or service 
potential of items of property, plant and equipment are 
expensed as incurred. Gains and losses on disposal 
of property, plant and equipment are determined by 
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts and 
are included in the profit and loss.

1.3.2. Intangible Assets 
Intangible assets are recognised if it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity from the 
intangible assets and the costs of the intangible assets 
can be reliably measured. 

Intangible assets comprise computer software and work-
in-progress. Intangible assets are recognised at cost. 
The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a business 
combination is its fair value at the date of acquisition. 
Intangible assets with a definite useful life are amortised 
using the straight-line method over their useful economic 
life, generally not exceeding 20 years. At each date of 
the Statement of Financial Position, intangible assets 
are reviewed for indications of impairment or changes in 
estimated future economic benefits. If such indications 
exist, the intangible assets are analysed to assess 
whether their carrying amount is fully recoverable. An 
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount 
exceeds the recoverable amount.

(a) Computer Software and Licenses 
Acquired computer software and licenses are capitalised 
as assets on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire 
and bring the specific software into use. Capitalised 
computer software is carried at cost less accumulated 
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1.3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.3.2. Intangible Assets (cont.)
(a) Computer Software and Licenses (cont.)
amortisation and impairment losses. Computer software 
is tested annually for impairment or changes in estimated 
future benefits. 

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method 
to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual 
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Computer software 2 years

Loan Management System 5 years

 
(b) System Development Costs
Costs associated with maintaining computer software 
programmes are recognised as an expense as and 
when incurred. Direct software development costs that 
enhance the benefits of computer software programmes 
and are clearly associated with an identifiable and unique 
software system, which will be controlled by the Trust 
and has a probable benefit exceeding one year, are 
recognised as intangible assets. 

These costs are initially capitalised as work-in-progress 
up to the date of completion of the project after which the 
asset is transferred to computer software and accounted 
for as per the computer software and licenses policy.

Management reviews the carrying value of capitalised 
work-in-progress on an annual basis, irrespective of 
whether there is an indication of impairment.

Development costs are recognised as intangible assets 
when the following criteria are met:
• It is technically feasible to complete the software 

product so that it will be available for use;
• Management intends to complete the software 

product and use or sell it;
• There is an ability to use or sell the software 

product;
• It can be demonstrated how the software 

product will generate probable future economic 
benefits; 

• Adequate technical, financial and other resources 
to complete the development and to use or sell the 
software product are available; and 

• The expenditure attributable to the software 
product during its development can be reliably 
measured.

1.3.3. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets 
Other than Goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Trust reviews the 
carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets in 
order to determine whether there is any indication that 
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). 

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of individual assets, the Trust estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which 
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent 
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets 
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, 
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group 
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and 
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible 
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment 
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that 
the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs 
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of 
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating 
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount; the 
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss 
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the 
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 
decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) 
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
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1.3.3. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets 
 Other than Goodwill (cont.)

amount, so that the increased carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognised 
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately 
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at 
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the 
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. 

1.3.4. Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are initially recognised when 
the Trust becomes party to the contractual provisions 
of the relevant instrument, and are initially measured 
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, these 
instruments are measured as below.

1.3.4.1. Financial Assets

The Trust classifies its financial assets in the following 
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification 
depends on the purpose for which the financial 
assets were acquired. Management determines the 
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition 
and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

(a) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
This category has two sub-categories: financial assets 
held for trading and those designated at fair value 
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is 
classified in this category if acquired principally for the 
purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated 
by management. Assets in this category are classified 
as current assets if they are either held for trading or 
are expected to be realised within 12 months of the 
Statement of Financial Position date.

(b) Loans and Advances
Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets 
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. Loans and advances are classified 
as ‘trade and other receivables’ in the Statement of 
Financial Position, except for maturities greater than 12 
months after the Statement of Financial Position date, 
which are classified as non-current assets.

(c) Available-for-sale Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives 
that are either designated in this category or not classified 
in any of the categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose 
of the investment within 12 months of the Statement of 
Financial Position date.

(d) Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost; 
which, due to their short-term nature, closely approximates 
their fair value; less provision for impairment. A provision 
for impairment of trade receivables is established when 
there is evidence that the Trust will not be able to collect 
all amounts due according to the original terms of 
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the value of 
estimates’ future cash flows, discounted at the effective 
interest rate, and is recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, 
deposits held on call with banks, and investments in 
money market instruments. Cash and cash equivalents 
are stated at amortised cost, which, due to their short-
term nature, closely approximates their fair value.

Identification and Measurement of Impairment of 
Financial Assets
At each reporting date, the Trust assesses whether there 
is objective evidence that financial assets not carried at 
fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial 
asset or a group of financial assets are impaired when 
objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and 
that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows 
of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can 
include significant financial difficulty of the borrower or 
issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of 
a loan or advance by the Trust on terms that the Trust would 
not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer 
will enter bankruptcy or other observable data relating to a 
group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment 
status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
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1.3. Significant accounting policies (cont.)
1.3.4. Financial Instruments (cont.)
Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost 
are measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial asset and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s 
original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 
and reflected in an allowance account against loans and 
receivables. Interest on impaired assets continues to be 
recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When 
a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss 
to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed 
through the statement of comprehensive income. 

The Trust writes off financial assets carried at amortised 
cost when they are determined to be uncollectible.

Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets shall be derecognised only when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets 
expire, or are transferred to another entity. If the Trust 
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the 
transferred assets, it recognises its retained interest in 
the asset and associated liability for the amounts it may 
have to pay. If the Trust retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, 
it continues to recognise a collateralised borrowing for 
the proceeds received.

1.3.4.2. Financial liabilities
Payables are stated at amortised cost, which, due to their 
short term nature closely approximates their fair value.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities shall be derecognised only when the 
Trust’s obligations under the contract are discharged, 
cancelled or they expire.

1.3.4.3. Specific instruments
Capital contributions
Contributions received from the beneficiary that are not 
required to be paid back are classified as equity. Any directly 
attributable transaction costs are allocated to equity.

Contributions received from the beneficiary that are 

required to be paid back are classified as a liability. Any 
directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the 
liability. The liability is recognised, initially, at fair value. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability is measured 
at amortised cost using effective interest method. Interest 
expense in relation to this liability is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

Amortised cost measurement
The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the 
amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured 
at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or 
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between the initial 
amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any 
reduction for impairment.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value 
plus transactional costs. Subsequently, these items are 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
method. Interest expenses on these items are recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive income for the year 
and are included in finance costs. Net gains or losses 
represent gains and losses on derecognition and they are 
included in other income or other expenses.

Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net 
amount reported on the statement of financial position 
where there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. Income and expenses are offset only to 
the extent that their related instruments have been offset 
in the statement of financial position.

1.3.5. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, 
the Trust has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an 
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation. A provision for an onerous contract is 
recognised by the Trust when the expected benefits to 
be derived by the Trust from a contract are lower than 
the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the 
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1.3.5. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets (cont.)
contract. An onerous contract is a contract in which the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the 
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be 
received under it. Contingent liabilities, which include 
certain guarantees other than financial guarantees, are 
possible obligations that arise from past events whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the Trust’s control. Contingent liabilities 
are not recognised in the financial statements but are 
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements, 
unless they are remote.

1.3.6. Revenue Recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration 
received or receivable in the ordinary course of the Trust’s 
business. Revenue is recognised when it is probable that 
economic benefits will flow to the Trust and that these 
benefits can be reliably measured:

(a) Interest Income and Expense
Interest income and expenses are recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis 
using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest 
rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost 
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating the 
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. 
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life 
of the financial instrument. In terms of Financial Instruments 
standards IAS 39 (Recognition and Measurement)/IFRS 
7 (Disclosure), interest is accrued in respect of impaired 
advances on the original effective interest rate used to 
determine the recoverable amount.

(b) Raising Fee
KGFT charges a raising fee of up to 2% on the amount 
advanced to projects. KGFT is entitled to this income, 
and recognises this income in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income on the first day that funds are 
disbursed to the qualifying projects.

(c) Other Income – Operating Expense Subsidy 
During the initial period, which is defined in the legal 
agreements as the first five years of operations of KGFT 

(i.e. from 12 August 2009 to 12 August 2014), it was 
expected that KGFT would not generate sufficient revenue 
to finance its operations. Accordingly, KGFT received an 
operating expense subsidy out of the operating expense 
fund that has been set up for this purpose by the capital 
provider. This subsidy is recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income when it was approved. Following 
the restructure on 1 November 2013, the interest earned 
on the operating expense fund will accrue directly 
to KGFT and will be recognised through income, on 
a monthly basis or accrual basis, dependant on the 
investment funding of the operating expenses fund.

1.3.7. Employee Benefits
(a) Short-term Employee Benefits
The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised 
during the period in which the employee renders the 
related service.

(b) Other Long-term Employee Benefits – Long 
Service Award

Employees employed on/before 31 March 2012 are 
entitled to a long-term benefit based on various periods 
of long service to the Trust and accrues up to 31 March 
2015. The long service award liability is calculated by 
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit 
method. The long service award liability is an unfunded 
liability in that there are no separate plan assets out 
of which obligations are to be settled. The amount 
recognised as a long service award liability is therefore 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the 
end of the reported period. Current service costs and 
interest costs are recognised as expenses. All actuarial 
gains and losses and past service costs are recognised 
immediately as expenses.

1.3.8. Lease Transactions
(a) Operating Lease
Assets leased by the Trust, under which all risks and 
benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the 
lessor, are classified as operating leases. Rentals payable 
under operating leases are charged to profit & loss on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

(b) Finance Lease
Finance leases are capitalised as property, plant 
and equipment at the cash equivalent cost and a 
corresponding finance lease liability is raised accordingly.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
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1.3. Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)
1.3.9. Business Combinations
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the 
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a 
business combination is measured at fair value, which is 
calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of 
the assets transferred by the Trust, the liabilities incurred 
by the Trust to the former owners of the acquiree, and 
the equity interests issued by the Trust in exchange for 
control of the acquirer. Acquisition related costs are 
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired 
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair 
value at the acquisition date. Business combination 
involving entities or businesses under common control is 
defined in IFRS3: Business Combinations as a business 
combination in which all of the combining entities or 
businesses ultimately are controlled by the same party or 
parties, both before and after the combination and that 
control, is not transitory.

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising 
from assets that are not capable of being individually 
identified and separately recognised in a business 
combination and is determined as the excess of the 
cost of acquisition over the group’s interest in the net fair 
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities of the entity. 

If, after reassessment, the Trust’s interest in the net fair 
value of the acquirer’s identification assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business 
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in 
profit or loss. 

Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and 
is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated 
impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is 
allocated to each of the Trust’s cash-generating units’ 
expected benefit from the synergies of the combination. 
Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been 
allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more 
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may 
be impaired. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill 
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

1.3.10. Taxation
The income of the Trust is not subject to normal tax 
as its income is deemed to vest with its shareholder 
(entity of KwaZulu-Natal Government), which is exempt 
in terms of Section 10(1)(a) of the Income Tax Act. The 
Trust is, however, subject to indirect taxes that comprise 
non-recoverable value added taxation (VAT) and skills 
development levies (SDL). 

1.3.11. Other Policies
1.3.11.1. Irregular or Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in 
contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement 
of the PFMA. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means 
expenditure that was made in vain and would have been 
avoided had reasonable care been exercised. All irregular, 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period it was 
incurred.

1.3.11.2. Related Parties
The following details are disclosed in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements with regard to related parties:
• All related party names and details of the relationship;
• Transactions with related parties during the period;
• All balances outstanding with related parties at year end;
• Transactions and balances related to key 

management personnel; and
• Compensation paid to key management personnel.

1.3.11.3. Commitments
The amount of contractual commitments for the acquisition 
of property, plant and equipment or major contracts, are 
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Future operating and finance lease commitments are 
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

1.3.12. New Standards and Interpretations not yet 
Effective

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements of 
the Trust for the year ended 31 March 2015, the following 
standards and interpretations applicable to the Trust 
were in issue but not effective:

All standards and interpretations will be adopted at their 
effective dates. The Trustees are of the opinion that 
these amendments will not have a material impact on the 
Trust’s Annual Financial Statements.
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1.3.12. New Standards and Interpretations not yet 
Effective (cont.)

Standard/Interpretation Effective Date

IFRS 9 
(2014)

Financial 
instruments

Annual periods 
beginning on or after  
1 January 2018*

IFRS 15 
(2014)

Revenue from 
contracts from 
customers

Annual periods 
beginning on or after  
1 January 2017*

The Trustees are of the opinion that the impact of the 
application of the remaining standards and interpretations 
will be as follows:

IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 will be adopted by KGFT for the first time for 
its financial reporting period ending 31 March 2018. 
The standard will be applied retrospectively, subject to 
transitional provisions. IFRS 9 was revised using a three-
phase approach.

Phase 1 – Initial Measurement and Classification of 
Financial Assets
Under IFRS 9, there are two options in respect of 
classification of financial assets, namely, financial assets 
measured at amortised cost or at fair value. Financial 
assets are measured at amortised cost when the business 
model is to hold assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and when they give rise to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
outstanding. All other financial assets are measured at 
fair value. Embedded derivatives are no longer separated 
from hybrid contracts that have a financial asset host.

The impact on the financial statements for the Trust 
cannot be reasonably estimated as at 31 March 2015.

Phase 2 – Impairment
As part of IFRS 9, the IASB has introduced a new, 
expected loss impairment model that will require more 
timely recognition of expected credit losses. Specifically, 
the new Standard requires entities to account for 
expected credit losses from when financial instruments 

are first recognised and it lowers the threshold for 
recognition of full lifetime expected losses.

The impact on the financial statements for the Trust 
cannot be reasonably estimated as at 31 March 2015.

Phase 3 – Hedge Accounting
IFRS 9 introduces a substantially-reformed model for 
hedge accounting with enhanced disclosures about 
risk management activity. The new model represents a 
substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that aligns the 
accounting treatment with risk management activities, 
enabling entities to better reflect these activities in their 
financial statements. In addition, as a result of these 
charges, users of the financial statements will be provided 
with better information about risk management and the 
effect of hedge accounting on the financial statements.

The impact on the financial statements for the Trust 
cannot be reasonably estimated as at 31 March 2015.

IFRS 15 (2014) Revenue from Contracts from 
Customers
IFRS 15 will be adopted by KGFT for the first time for 
its financial reporting period ending 31 March 2018. 
The standard will be applied retrospectively, subject to 
transitional provisions.

The main objectives of this project were as follows:
• To remove inconsistencies and weaknesses in 

existing revenue recognition standards by providing 
clear principles for revenue recognition in a robust 
framework;

• To provide a single revenue recognition model that 
will improve comparability over a range of industries, 
companies and geographical boundaries.

• To simplify the preparation of financial statements 
by reducing the number of requirements to which 
preparers must refer.

Amendments to IFRS2, IFRS3, IFRS5, IFRS8, IFRS10, 
IFRS11, IFRS12, IFRS13, IFRS14, IAS1, IAS16, IAS19, 
IAS27, IAS28, IAS38 and IAS41 are not applicable to the 
business of the Trust and will therefore have no impact on 
future financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
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2. PROPeRTY, PLANT ANd equIPMeNT
Computer
Equipment

Office
Equipment

Furniture &
Fittings

Leasehold
Improvement

Leased
Assets

Work in 
Progress Total

R R R R R R R

2015

Cost

Balance as at 1 April 2014 402 016 168 709 756 834 1 231 837 295 617 - 2 855 013

Additions 294 565 164 269 32 678 39 383 52 599 64 698 648 192

Disposals (29 080) (14 693) - - - - (43 773)

Transfer - (8 332) - - 8 332 - -

Balance as at 31 March 2015 667 501 309 953 789 512 1 271 220 356 548 64 698 3 459 432

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2014 (210 631) (135 140) (274 262) (336 219) (172 556) - (1 128 808)

Disposals 29 080 14 469 - - - - 43 549

Transfer - 1 822 - - (1 822) - -

Depreciation for the year (109 851) (27 296) (96 761) (251 291) (76 997) - (562 196)

Balance as at 31 March 2015 (291 402) (146 145) (371 023) (587 510) (251 375) - (1 647 455)

Net book value as at  
31 March 2015 376 099 163 808 418 489 683 710 105 173 64 698 1 811 977

The Trust had fully depreciated equipment with a historic cost amounting to R315 947 in the fixed assets register and these fully 
depreciated assets are still in use. The carrying amount of the leased asset is R105 174 and the Trust’s obligations under finance 
leases (refer to Note 9) are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

Computer
Equipment

Office
Equipment

Furniture &
Fittings

Leasehold
Improvement

Leased
Assets

Work in 
Progress Total

R R R R R R R

2014
Cost

Balance as at 1 April 2013 - - - - - - -

Transfers in on 1 November 2013 402 016 168 709 756 834 1 182 409 295 617 - 2 805 585

Additions - - - 49 428 - - 49 428

Disposals - - - - - - -

Balance as at 31 March 2014 402 016 168 709 756 834 1 231 837 295 617 - 2 855 013

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2013 - - - - - - -

Transfers in on 1 November 2013 (162 646) (126 587) (226 317) (236 762) (148 073) - (900 385)

Disposals - - - - - - -

Depreciation for the year (47 985) (8 553) (47 945) (99 457) (24 483) - (228 423)

Balance as at 31 March 2014 (210 631) (135 140) (274 262) (336 219) (172 556) - ( 1 128 808)

Net book value as at 31 
March 2014 191 385 33 569 482 572 895 618 123 061 - 1 726 205

The Trust had fully depreciated equipment with a historic cost amounting to R226 517 in the fixed assets register and these fully 
depreciated assets are still in use. The carrying amount of the leased asset is R123 061 and the Trust’s obligations under finance leases 
(refer to Note 9) are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.
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3. INTANGIBLe ASSeTS
Computer
Software

Loan
Management 

System

Work In
Progress

Total

R R R R
2015

Cost

Balance as at 1 April 2014 100 540 1 262 432 24 322 1 387 294

Additions 35 857 - 30 000 65 857

Net work in progress transfer 24 322 - (24 322) -

Disposals (88 846) - - (88 846)

Balance as at 31 March 2015 71 873 1 262 432 30 000 1 364 305

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2014 (88 605) (614 806) - (703 411)

Disposals 88 846 - - 88 846

Amortisation for the year (27 933) (252 553) - (280 486)

Balance as at 31 March 2015 (27 692) (867 359) - (895 051)

Net book value as at 31 March 2015 44 181 395 073 30 000 469 254

Computer
Software

Loan
Management 

System

Work In
Progress

Total

R R R R
2014

Cost

Balance as at 1 April 2013 - - - -

Transfers in on 1 November 2013 88 846 1 262 432 - 1 351 278

Additions 11 694 - 24 322 36 016

Balance as at 31 March 2014 100 540 1 262 432 24 322 1 387 294

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2013 - - - -

Transfers in on 1 November 2013 (88 070) (510 325) - (598 395)

Disposals - - - -

Amortisation for the year (535) (104 481) - (105 016)

Balance as at 31 March 2014 (88 605) (614 806) - (703 411)

Net book value as at 31 March 2014 11 935 647 626 24 322 683 883

KGFT developed a new logo and website during the 31 March 2015 financial year. The Trust has undertaken to protect the intellectual 
property rights by registering the relevant trademarks. As at 31 March 2015, the registration is still in process and the costs amounting 
to R30 000 have been classified as work-in-progress. Fully depreciated software with a historic cost amounting to nil (2014 – R86 339) 
is included in the assets register and is still in use.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
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4. LOANS ANd AdVANCeS
2015 2014

Note R R
Loans and advances net of provision for suspended interest 363 416 961 224 384 145

Provision for impairment - (22 313 332)

363 416 961 202 070 813

Less: Short-term portion of loans and advances (17 317 661) (98 077 854)

Non-current loans and advances 346 099 300 103 992 959

The loans and advances bear interest at rates that are determined at JIBAR plus margin and liquidity costs. The margins range from 
1.59% to 4.47%, based on the debt structuring and credit risk assessed for each loan. Repayment periods also vary from monthly, 
quarterly and biannually, as supported by the cash flows and the underlying projects.

During the current financial year, the Trust entered into a fixed term loan project agreement on one of its projects within the portfolio. The 
Trust does not speculate in interest rates. In order to manage the interest fluctuations, the Trust entered into hedge agreement with Rand 
Merchant Bank to eliminate the interest rate fluctuations as a result of the changes in the JIBAR rate.

2015 2014

Note R R
Movement in loans and advances:

Balance as at 1 April  224 384 145 233 533 383

Add: draw downs 291 999 500 4 774 189

Add: net interest earned 13 22 002 156 35 024 157

Add: reversal of suspended interest 13 7 835 315 -

Less: payments received (182 804 155) (48 947 584)

Balance as at 31 March 363 416 961 224 384 145

Movement in impairment of loans and advances:

Balance as at 1 April (22 313 332) (22 313 332)

Reversal to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 22 313 332 -

Balance as at 31 March - (22 313 332)

A provision was raised in 2012 due to one of the projects in the portfolio being unable to meet its repayment terms. The project has 
subsequently commenced repaying and it’s financial performance has significantly improved. The improved financial position is as a 
result of the project being awarded a major contract. The loan agreement was subsequently restructured in terms of the restructured 
loan repayment schedule. The loan will be settled in full by February 2018. As a result of the loan restructuring, the impairment 
provision previously held was reviewed after consideration of the valuation of security held and accordingly reversed in March 2015.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
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5. CASH ANd CASH equIVALeNTS
2015 2014

Notes R R
Current accounts 3 853 577 63 456 737

Call accounts 21 088 652 3 576

Debt Service Reserve Bank Account 7 - 9 580 958

Investment accounts – Fund I 166 921 991  293 029 743

Investment accounts – Fund II 8 402 919 821 241 928 716

Included in the above amounts is a R20m deposit held with Rand Merchant 
Bank as collateral on the interest rate swap agreement (refer to Note 4). 
Also included in the amounts above is R0m (2014: R9m), which was held as 
security in accordance with the Senior and Mezzanine Facility Agreements with 
the lenders. The debt service was released on 31 March 2015 following the 
prepayment to lenders (refer to Note 11). 

The Trust invests surplus funds with financial institutions that are rated in 
accordance with Fitch rating of BBB ranging with the exception of Ithala Limited, 
which is not independently rated, however, has been approved as an authorised 
intermediary by the Trustees. The interest earned on surplus funds approximated 
on average 6.67% (2014: 5.10%) during the year.

594 784 041 607 999 730

Short-term Deposit and Maturity Analysis
Current accounts 3 853 577 63 456 737

Call accounts 21 088 652 544 542 993

1-30 days 355 850 005 -

1-6 months 193 991 807 -

Over five years 20 000 000 -

594 784 041 607 999 730

6. TRAde ANd OTHeR ReCeIVABLeS
   2015 2014

Notes     R R
Trade receivables 36 987 16 152

Sundry debtors 926 637 1 482 794

Prepayments 265 675 168 438

Deposit 241 437 241 437

Staff debtors 95 215 -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

Trade and other receivable are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 
30-60 day terms. Staff debtors are interest free and the employees are subject to 
fringe benefits tax. The staff debtor’s terms are normally between 1-60 months.

1 565 951 1 908 821

Maturity Analysis
Demand 1 470 735 1 908 821

1-30 days 7 698 -

1-6 months 31 824 -

6-12 months 6 188 -

Over 5 years 49 506 -

1 565 951 1 908 821
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7. CAPITAL CONTRIBuTION ANd ReSeRVeS
2015 2014

Notes R R
Initial capital 10 10

Capital contribution – project capital 317 636 161 72 636 161

Total capital contribution 317 636 171 72 636 171

Debt service reserve 5 - 9 580 958

General reserve 104 319 277 104 319 277

421 955 448 186 536 406

The total capital contribution represents capital provided by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government, and remains part of the Trust’s 
capital for the lifespan of the Trust. There are no repayment terms and this funding is interest free. The balance has increased due to 
the increase in the amounts disbursed to the projects. All the funding for the projects has been funded by the capital contribution due 
to the change in business model. The lenders have been settled early (refer to Note 11). 

The debt service reserve was provided by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government. This contribution is recognised directly as a debt 
service reserve as it is required to be maintained in terms of the Senior and Mezzanine Term Facility Agreement. In terms of the Trust 
deed and the senior and mezzanine term facility agreements, the Trust is required to maintain a debt service reserve that is equal to 
the amount payable to the lenders within the next six months. 

The general reserve was provided by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government. Amounts received related to the settlement subsidy 
received for the repayment of a previous lender (INCA) on their exit from the Fund as well as benefits received as a result of the waiver 
of amounts payable on the acquisition of the net assets of the Fund Manager.

8. deFeRRed FuNdS
2015 2014

Notes R R
Deferred funds – Fund I 44 863 839 289 863 839

Deferred funds – Fund II 5 402 919 821 241 928 716

Total deferred funds 447 783 660 531 792 555

The deferred Funds for Fund I comprises the residual deferred funds available for project drawdown. This is derived from the R362.5m 
as per the facility agreements less the capital contributions already drawn for disbursed projects as detailed in Note 7 above. The 
deferred funds for Fund II comprises ring-fenced capital received outside of Fund I (Debt Fund). The capital funds received totalled 
R360m and the rest of the funds relates to interest that the Trust had not included as part of income and remains as part of the Fund 
II capital. This interest was ring-fenced in terms of the security structure with the lenders. 

The Trust is, however, undergoing structural changes that have resulted in the exit of the lenders from the funding structure. Following 
the exit of the lenders, the Trust will move into an en-commandite partnership structure operating a debt and equity fund. Consequently, 
the Trust Deed will be amended and the interest earned on Fund II will be transferred to the Statement of Comprehensive Income and 
be utilised for expenses in the 2015/2016 financial year.

9. FINANCe LeASe LIABILITY
2015 2014

Notes R R
Total finance lease liability 126 824 175 410

Less: short-term portion of finance lease liability (106 864) (77 078)

Long-term portion of finance lease liability 19 960 98 332

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)



77
INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

KZN GROWTH FUND TRUST  
IT1437/2007 (PMB)

Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

The split of the minimum lease payments due, future finance charges and present value of minimum lease payments due are detailed 
in Note 20.2.

10. PROVISIONS

2015 2014
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Discount rate 7.17% 7.73%

General salary inflation 6.16% 6.75%

Net discount rate 0.95% 0.92%

Average retirement age 63 63

2015 2014

Notes R R
Amounts Recognised in Profit and Loss in Respect of the LSA:

Current service cost 54 285 40 833

Interest 28 118 9 181

Actuarial (gain)/loss (109 846) 10 354

Net amount recognised in profit and loss (27 443) 60 368

The expense is included in the personnel expense, which is classified as 
administrative expenses as per Note 16.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

Long-term portion of LSA provision 277 972 341 172

Short term portion of LSA provision 35 757 44 303

Total LSA provision 313 729 385 475

 2015 2014

Notes R R
Provisions comprise the following:

Long-service awards 10.1 313 729 385 475

Audit fee provision 10.2 394 995 334 305

Total provisions 708 724 719 780

Long-term portion of provisions 277 972 341 172

Short-term portion of provisions 430 752 378 608

Total provisions 708 724 719 780

Provisions comprise employee benefits that relate to long service awards (LSA) and provision for audit fees. The details relating to the 
long service awards are found in note 10.1 and comprise short- and long-term portions, whereas the details of the provision for audit 
fees is detailed in Note 10.2 and comprises only short-term provisions.

10.1. Long Service Awards
The Trust operates an unfunded long service award for qualifying employees. Under the award, the employees are entitled to an LSA 
for every five years of service completed, from five years to fifteen years of service inclusive. No other employee benefits are provided 
to employees.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the long service obligation were carried out at 31 March 2015 by Mr Chanan 
Weiss, Fellow of the Faculty of Actuaries and the Actuarial Society of South Africa of Arch Actuarial Consulting. The present value of the 
long service obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

2015 2014

Notes R R



78
THE KZN GROWTH FUND TRUST

KZN GROWTH FUND TRUST  
IT1437/2007 (PMB)

Annual Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

                      2015 204

Notes R R
Movements in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation in the 
Year were as Follows:

The amount included in the Statement of Financial Position arising from 
KGFT’s obligation in respect of its LSA is as follows:

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 313 729 385 475

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 313 729 385 475

Defined benefit obligation assumed from the Fund Manager - 352 734

Opening defined benefit obligation 385 475 -

Current service cost 54 285 40 833

Interest 28 118 9 181

Expected benefit vestings (44 303) (27 627)

Actuarial (gain)/loss (109 846) 10 354

Closing defined benefit obligation 313 729 385 475

Sensitivity Analysis Assumptions     
The assumptions that tend to have the greatest impact on the results are:   
i. The discount rate relative to the salary inflation assumptions; and    
ii. Assumed rates of withdrawals of employees from service.    

The liability at the valuation date was recalculated to show the effect of:     
i. A 1% increase and decrease in the assumed general salary inflation rate; and  
ii. A 50% decrease in the assumed withdrawal rates from service.

Sensitivity Analysis on the Unfunded Accrued Liability

Assumption Change

2015 2014

Liability % change Liability % Change
Central assumptions 313 729 385 475

General salary inflation
+1% 324 234 +3% 402 173 +4%

-1% 303 662 -3% 369 707 -4%

Withdrawal rates -50% 367 253 +17% 454 435 +23%

Sensitivity Analysis on the Current-service and Interest Costs for the Year Ending 31 March 2015

Assumption Change

Current-
Service 

Cost
Interest 

Cost Total % Change
Central assumptions 100 900 28 100 129 000

General salary inflation
+1% 106 100 29 400 135 500 +5%

-1% 96 000 26 900 122 900 -5%

Withdrawal rates -50% 122 827 33 448 156 275 +21%

10. PROVISIONS (CONT.)
10.1. Long service awards (cont.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
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The structural changes have resulted in the exit of the lenders from the funding 
structure, through an early cancellation of the lenders respective commitments 
and settlement of their current exposures. Lenders were fully settled on 31 
March 2015. 

No breakage costs were incurred on cancellation of the facilities.

During the March 2014 financial year end restructure, it was agreed that INCA 
will exit the funding arrangement. The EDTEA provided the settlement amount 
of R48m to facilitate the early exit of INCA.

A summary of the transaction was as follows:

Total outstanding to INCA as at 14 November 2013 - 48 594 723

Amount settled (as received from EDTEA) - (48 000 000)

Discount received for cash settlement 15 - 594 723

Movement in loans and borrowings:

Balance as at 1 April 59 244 580 131 943 324

Add: draw downs - -

Add: interest expense 14 3 020 316 9 371 899

Less: payments made (normal terms) (38 015 980) (33 475 920)

Less: payments made (early settlement) (24 248 916) -

Less: payments made (repayment of INCA) - (48 594 723)

Balance as at 31 March - 59 244 580

10. PROVISIONS (CONT.)
10.1. Long Service Awards (cont.)
Sensitivity Analysis on the Current-service and Interest Costs for the Year Ending 31 March 2014

Assumption
Change

Current-
Service 

Cost
Interest 

Cost Total % Change
Central assumptions 100 900 28 100 129 000

General salary inflation
+1% 106 100 29 400 135 500 +5%

-1% 96 000 26 900 122 900 -5%

Withdrawal rates -50% 122 827 33 448 156 275 +21%

10.2. Provision for External Audit Fees
Provision comprises audit fees only. The movement in the provision is as follows:

                      2015 2014

Notes R R
Balance as at 1 April 334 305 242 820

Provisions raised during the year 482 777 334 305

Provision utilised during the year (422 087) (242 820)

Balance as at 31 March 394 995 334 305

11. LOANS ANd BORROWINGS
                      2015 2014

Notes R R
Total borrowings - 59 244 580

Less: Short-term portion of loans and borrowings - (17 882 201)

Long-term borrowings - 41 362 379

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
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12. TRAde ANd OTHeR PAYABLeS
                      2015 2014

Notes R R
Trade payables 192 638 1 832 995

Trade accruals 321 860 2 566 917

Committee fees payable 125 000 611 540

Accrued leave pay 673 189 786 021

Operating lease commitments 486 345 601 610

1 799 032 6 399 083

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-60 day terms. Leave pay accrual is based on the 
actual leave days due to employees and is calculated using the current remuneration packages. The timing of cash is dependent on 
the employee’s resignation, retirement or dismissal.

13. INTeReST INCOMe
                      2015 2014

Notes R R
Current account 238 078 834 111

Call account 1 543 190 792 076

Investment accounts 23 507 709 1 898 833

Loans and advances 22 002 156 35 024 157

Loans and advances reversal of suspended interest 7 835 315 -

55 126 448 38 549 177

14. INTeReST exPeNSe
                      2015 2014

Notes R R
Interest paid to SARS - 13 346

Interest paid on interest rate swap 115 841 -

Interest paid on borrowings 11 3 020 316 9 371 899

3 136 157 9 385 245

15. OTHeR INCOMe
                      2015 2014

Notes R R
Commitment fee income 55 026 26 406

Discount received on settlement of INCA 11 - 594 723

Foreign exchange gain - 5 341

Operating expense subsidy received - 11 719 000

Profit on sale of assets 1 878 20 000

Prepayment penalty 3 171 772 -

Sundry income 134 533 1 079

3 363 209 12 366 549

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
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16. OPeRATING exPeNSeS
                      2015 2014

Notes R R
The operational expenses include the following:

Agency fees 614 692 579 287

Audit fees and professional fees:

 - External audit fees 482 777 573 392

      - Current year provision 10.2 482 777 334 305

      - Prior year under provision - 171 087

      - Other services - 68 000

 - Internal audit fees 210 172 117 991

Bank charges 43 934 25 261

Commitment fees 1 937 007 2 609 459

Committee fees 1 810 888 3 095 187

Trustees fees 17.1 1 194 418 1 617 201

Investment Committee fees 17.2 257 277 1 058 870

Audit and Risk Committee fees 17.3 167 014 338 485

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee fees 17.4 192 179 80 631

Depreciation of equipment 2 562 196 228 423

Amortisation of intangible assets 3 280 486 105 016

Personnel expenses 14 579 303 4 821 358

Executive management remuneration 17.5 4 829 036 2 176 991

Staff salaries and benefits 9 777 710 2 583 999

Long service – current cost 10.1 54 285 40 833

Long service – interest cost 10.1 28 118 9 181

Long service – actuarial (gain)/loss 10.1 (109 846) 10 354

Legal fees 88 561 281 130

Travel and accommodation 778 251 298 045

Rent paid 946 908 180 822

Recruitment 756 329 137 436

Telecommunications 209 625 75 321

Project technical appraisal and background checks 575 981 925 777

Other advisory fees 721 783 957 597

Marketing costs 1 988 975 138 723

Fund management costs - 18 079 688

Insurance 159 253 133 501

Finance charge on finance lease 18 265 11 030

Breakage costs 107 958 -

Secretariat services 97 036 -

Other expenses 1 024 552 741 092

27 994 932 34 115 536

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)
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˚  Remuneration for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 October 2014.
˚˚ Remuneration for the period 1 November 2014 to 31 31 March 2015.
* Fees are paid to the independent trustees only as government representatives do not receive any fees. 
** Negative fees relate to prior year fee provision, which was reversed in the 2015 financial year.
^  The Chief Executive Officer is appointed as a Trustee by virtue of appointment and does not receive remuneration for Trustee fees nor 
  a retainer.

17. TRuSTeeS ANd OTHeR COMMITTee MeMBeRS’ ReMuNeRATION ANd exeCuTIVe 
ReMuNeRATION

2015 2014
Notes R R

17.1. Trustees’ Fees
Outgoing Committee˚ 

Mr B. Craig (Chairman) - 545 394

Ms S. Swanepoel - 209 287

Mr U. Naicker** (62 342) 317 649

Mr L.S. Magugula* - -

Mr Misra* - -

(62 342) 1 072 330

Incoming Committee˚˚  

Ms D. Hlatshwayo (Chairman) 553 478 217 971

Mr H. Switala (Deputy Chairman) 232 267 110 881

Ms P. Langeni 119 791 59 608

Prof. I.A.S. Vally 127 875 52 288

Ms D. Jay 119 309 69 911

Ms Z. Mbele (appointed on the 3 June 2014) 95 906 -

Mr R. Kalaichelvan (tendered resignation – effective 3 June 2014) 8 134 34 212

Mr S. Adam (Chief Executive Officer)^ - -

1 256 760 544 871

Total Trustee fees 1 194 418 1 617 201

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

17.2. Investment Committee Members’ Fees
Outgoing Committee˚

Mr J. Coetzee (Chairman) - 250 000

Mr R. Kalaichelvan - 125 000

Ms N. Qangule** (16 881) 142 500

Mr B. Breetzke - 142 500

Mr H. Switala - 142 500

Mr M. Manwadu - 142 500

(16 881) 945 000

Incoming Committee˚˚

Mr H. Switala (Chairman) 51 651 23 250

Ms P. Langeni 36 009 12 946

Mr C. Henriksen – Member, SBSA Representative 30 008 -

Ms H. Sathekge – Member, SBSA Representative 18 509 12 946

Ms D. Lerutla 89 464 51 782

Mr M. Manwadu – Member, DBSA Representative 48 517 12 946

274 158 113 870

Total Investment Committee fees 257 277 1 058 870
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Incoming Committee˚˚

Prof. I.A.S. Vally (Chairman) 86 228 22 339

Ms D. Jay 48 012 14 181

Ms Z. Mbele (appointment on 3 June 2014) 29 453 -

Mr R. Kalaichelvan (tendered resignation – resignation effective 3 June 2014) 3 321 3 212

167 014 39 732

Total Audit and Risk Committee fees 167 014 338 485

17. TRuSTeeS ANd OTHeR COMMITTee MeMBeRS’ ReMuNeRATION ANd exeCuTIVe 
ReMuNeRATION (cont.)

2015 2014

Notes R R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

17.3. Audit and Risk Committee Members’ Fees
Outgoing Committee˚

Mr U. Naicker (Chairman) - 126 945

Ms S. Swanepoel - 85 904

Mr J. Coetzee - 85 904

- 298 753

17.4. Human Resources and Remuneration Committee Member Fees
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (HR & REMCO)

Ms K.P.M. Simelane (Chairman) 126 066 45 479

Ms D. Jay 32 345 18 726

Prof. I.A.S. Vally 33 768 16 426

Total HR & REMCO fees 192 179 80 631

17.5. Executive Management Remuneration
Mr S. Adam – Chief Executive Officer* 2 259 353 1 328 303

Ms S.R. Mpofu – Chief Financial Officer (resigned 30 April 2014)* 112 663 848 688

Mr I. Abdoola – Chief Financial Officer (appointed 7 April 2014) 1 242 887 -

Mr M. Phungula – Legal, Risk and Compliance Officer (appointed 1 July 2014)** 955 800 -

Mr A.S. Shabane – Chief Investment Officer (appointed 1 February 2015) 258 333 -

4 829 036 2 176 991

˚  Remuneration for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 October 2014.
˚˚ Remuneration for the period 1 November 2014 to 31 31 March 2015.
*      Employees transferred from the KZN Growth Fund Managers to the Trust payroll effective from restructure on 1 November 2013.
**     Resigned 31 May 2015
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18. ACquISITION OF FuNd MANAGeMeNT COMPANY’S NeT ASSeTS
As at the commencement of business on 1 November 2013, being the effective date, the net assets of KZN Growth Fund 
Managers (SOC) Ltd was sold as part of a restructuring process to the Trust at their respective book values. All functions of Fund 
Managers are now carried out by the Trust. The governance structure of the Trust has also been changed. 

This change includes a change in the constitution and composition of the Board of Trustees as well as its Sub-committees. All 
stakeholders are working together to ensure that the institutional memory is retained in the organisation after the restructuring 
process. A detailed implementation plan has been developed to guide the process during the transitional period. As part of the 
restructure process, EDTEA approved the withdrawal of Infrastructure Finance Corporation (INCA), one of the lenders to the 
Fund. INCA’s contribution to the Fund amounting to R300m will not be replaced. The resultant total Fund size is now R787.5m.

18.1. Purchase price and payment 
The purchase price payable by the Trust for KZN Growth Fund Managers SOC Limited (which was sold as a going concern), was 
the net book value of the assets and liabilities less an amount of R5m, which was retained in KZN Growth Fund Managers (Soc) 
Ltd to allow it to pay relevant expenses attributable to the year end. The amount and date of return is uncertain and cannot be 
reliably estimated and has accordingly not been accounted for. The purchase price has been raised as a loan account payable 
by the Trust. Subsequent to the transaction, the loan payable by the Trust was waived, thereby discharging the payable.

18.2. Identifiable Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed

2015 2014

Notes R R
Property, plant and equipment - 1 899 903

Intangible assets - 752 885

Prepaid expenses - 260 675

Deposits - 241 437

Cash and cash equivalents - 55 784 876

Accrued expenses - (590 566)

Trade payables - (54 170)

Finance lease liability - (204 154)

Operating lease liability - (640 793)

Long service awards - (352 734)

Accrued leave pay - (778 082)

Net assets acquired - 56 319 277

Expenditure incurred during interim transfer period recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income - (4 494 898)

Net cash transfer received - 51 824 379
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19. CASH FLOWS FROM OPeRATING ACTIVITIeS
2015 2014

Notes R R
Total comprehensive income 50 571 900 7 414 944

Adjustment for non-cash items:

Add: depreciation 2 562 196 228 423

Add: amortisation 3 280 486 105 016

Less: interest income 13 (55 126 448) (38 549 177)

Add: Interest expense 14 3 136 157 9 385 245

Add: long service award 10.1 (27 443) 60 368

Less: Profit on sale of assets 15 (1 878) (20 000)

Less: foreign exchange gain 15 - (5 341)

Less: discount received for cash 15 - (594 723)

Less: reversal of provision for impairment on loans and advances 4 (22 313 332) -

Movements in current assets and liabilities

Decrease in trade and other receivables 342 870 14 232 568

Decrease in trade and other payables (4 600 051) (11 971 235)

Increase in provisions 16 387 124 226

Cash outflow from operating activities (27 159 156) (19 589 685)

20. LeASe COMMITMeNTS
20.1. Operating lease
The future minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

2015 2014

Notes R R
Due within next 12 months 645 169 545 364

Due from 1-5 years 1 006 689 1 521 990

Total future cash flows 1 651 858 2 067 354

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Trust for its office space and parking. The lease term is five years and 
rentals increase with the agreed upon escalations as per the lease agreements. The lease payments are subject to escalation of 
9% per annum. No contingent rent is payable.

20.2. Finance Lease Commitments
It is Trust policy to lease certain property and equipment under finance leases. The first lease term is five years and the average 
effective borrowing rate is 12,96%. Interest rates are linked to prime and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent 
rentals. 

The carrying amount of the leased asset is R63 882 (2014: R123 061) and the Trust’s obligations under finance leases are 
secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. The finance lease relates to the five-year lease of the two printers entered 
into under Xerox with effect from 1 June 2011. The lease agreements provide for 60 equal instalments amounting to R7,962 
including VAT for both machines over the period of the lease. Ownership of the printer will not pass to the Trust at the end of 
the lease period.

The second lease term relates to four iPad tablets. The Trust has elected to account for the iPad tablets’ two-year contract 
agreement as a finance lease. The carrying amount of the lease asset is R41 292 (2014: Rnil). The contract agreement provides 
for 24 equal instalments amounting to R1 580 for all four devices with effect from 1 August 2014. Ownership of the iPad tablets 
will transfer to the Trust at the end of the lease term.
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20. LeASe COMMITMeNTS (CONT.)
20.2. Finance Lease Commitments
The reconciliation between the total minimum lease payments and their present value:

Up to 1 Year 1 Year to 5 
Years

Total

R R R
2015

Minimum lease payments 114 510 20 096 134 606

Finance cost (7 646) (136) (7 782)

Present value 106 864 19 960 126 824

2014

Minimum lease payments 95 350 106 156 201 506

Finance cost (18 272) (7 824) (26 096)

Present value 77 078 98 332 175 410

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGeMeNT
Introduction and overview
The Trust has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

• Credit risk;
• Liquidity risk;
• Market risk; and
• Operational risk.

This note presents information about the Trust’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Trust’s objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring and managing risk.

Risk Management Framework
The Board of Trustees has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Trust’s risk management framework. 
The Trust’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the entity, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly 
to reflect changes in market conditions and the Trust’s activities.

21.1. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment that it has 
entered into with the Trust, resulting in a financial loss to the Trust. It arises principally from cash and cash equivalents and from 
loans and advances made. For risk management reporting purposes the Trust considers and consolidates all elements of credit 
risk exposure such as individual’s obligor default risk and sector risk.

21.1.1. Management of Credit Risk

The Trust’s policy over credit risk is to minimise its exposure to counterparties with perceived higher risk of default by dealing only 
with counterparties meeting the credit standards and by taking collateral for advances made. The Trust, through its Investment 
Committee, has designed comprehensive investment, credit and pricing policies that regulate the processes to be conducted in the 
evaluation of loans and advances as well as the terms and conditions under which loans and advances are made.

The Trust assesses the credit rating of the loans and advances when it becomes party to the transaction and this is used to 
determine the credit margin that is included in the price that is charged to the loan. The Trust’s credit risks are monitored on a 
semi-annual basis by the Board of Trustees.

Cash and cash equivalents are required to be held with the financial institutions as approved by the Trustees.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGeMeNT (CONT.)

21.1. Credit Risk (cont.)

21.1.2. Exposure to Credit Risk
The Trust’s maximum credit risk exposure (before collateral and other credit enhancements) at the Statement of Financial Position 
date is represented by the respective carrying amounts of the financial assets in the Statement of Financial Position. The risks 
on some of these exposures, such as loans and advances, are mitigated by collateral held.

The Trust holds tangible and intangible securities for the loans and advances. This includes, but is not limited to, specific notarial 
bonds, cession of insurance policies, project accounts, shareholder agreements and other assets.

21.1.3. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Trust’s cash and cash equivalents are held mainly with South Africa financial institutions with a rating of F3 (ZAR), short-term 
National Rating based on rating agency Fitch ratings, with the exception of Ithala SOC Limited, which has been approved by 
the Board of Trustees.

21.1.4. Concentration of Credit Risk
The Investment Committee reviews credit concentration of debt securities held based on counterparties and industries. As at the 
reporting date, the Trust’s debt securities’ exposures were concentrated in the following industries:

Sector Percentage

Transport and logistics 20%

Telecommunications 25%

Manufacturing 55%

21.1.5. Loans and Advances
The Trust enters into credit agreements that may result in credit loss in the event that the counterparty to the transaction is 
unable to fulfil its contractual obligation to the Trust. 

The Trust minimises its credit risk by monitoring the counterpart creditworthiness. In addition, the counterparties are required to 
go through an approval process and provide collateral in order to qualify for a loan.

21.1.6. Trade and Other Receivables
The trade and other receivables as disclosed are not exposed to any credit risk and no amounts are overdue.

21.1.7. Counterparty Risk
Credit risk also arises in the form of financial counterparty risk from the Trust’s cash and liquidity management activities. In order 
to mitigate this risk, the Trust only deals with the financial institutions as approved by the Board of Trustees.

21.2. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial assets, or that such obligations will have to be settled in a manner disadvantageous 
to the Trust.

21.2.1. Management of Liquidity Risk
The Trust’s policy and the Fund Manager’s approach to managing liquidity is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities, as 
and when due, without incurring undue losses or risking damage to the Trust’s reputation. The Trust’s liquidity risk is managed 
in accordance with policies and procedures in place whereby the Trust is required to maintain a debt service reserve in order to 
meet its obligation for repayments for loans and borrowing. The Trustee’s overall liquidity risks are monitored on a regular basis 
by the Board of Trustees.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGeMeNT (CONT.)
21.2. Liquidity Risk (cont.)
21.2.1. Management of Liquidity Risk (cont.)

A summary of the Trust’s liquidity profile as at 31 March:

 Notes On Demand 1 to 30 
Days

1 to 6 
Months

6 Months 
to 1 Year

From 1 to 5 
Years

After 5 
Years Total

2015

Financial assets
Loans and advances 4 - 885 633 5 260 240 11 171 788 88 774 998 257 324 302 363 416 961
Trade receivable 6 1 470 735 7 698 31 824 6 188 49 506 - 1 565 951
Cash and cash 
equivalents 5 24 942 229 355 850 005 193 991 807 - - 20 000 000 594 784 041

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 (1 799 032) - - - - - (1 799 032)
Loans and borrowings 11 - - - - - - -
Deferred funds 8 (447 783 660) - - - - - (447 783 660)
Net liquidity 
(shortfall)/excess (423 169 728) 356 743 336 199 283 871 11 177 976 88 824 504 277 324 302 510 184 261

Cumulative liquidity 
(shortfall)/excess (423 169 728) (66 426 392)   132 857 479 144 035 455 232 859 959 510 184 261 510 184 261

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

2014

Financial assets

Loans and advances 4 - 20 947 029 77 130 825 118 518 491 7 787 800 224 384 145

Trade receivable 6 1 908 821 - - - - - 1 908 821

Cash and cash 
equivalents 5 607 999 730 - - - - - 607 999 730

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 12 (6 399 083) - - - - - (6 399 083)

Loans and borrowings 11 - (10 028 962) (7 853 239) (41 023 854) (338 525) (59 244 580)

Deferred funds 8 (531 792 555) - - - - - (531 792 555)

Net liquidity excess 71 716 913 - 10 918 067 69 277 586 77 494 637 7 449 275 236 856 478

Cumulative liquidity 
excess 71 716 913 71 716 913 82 634 980 151 912 566 229 407 203 236 856 478 236 856 478

The table shows the undiscounted cash flows of the Trust’s financial liabilities on the basis of their earliest possible contractual 
maturity. The gross amounts include interest payable where appropriate. The Trust’s expected cash flows on these instruments 
do not vary significantly from this analysis.

21.3. Market Risks

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest risk that will affect the Trust’s income or the value of its 
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures 
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGeMeNT (CONT.)
21.3. Market Risks (cont.)
21.3.1. Management of Market Risks
The Trust’s market risk is managed by the Trust in accordance with policies and procedures in place. The Trust’s level of 
borrowing and consequently, the debt service costs, are closely monitored and controlled by the Trustees in regard to the 
prevailing and projected interest rates and the Trust’s capacity to service such debt from future earnings.

21.3.2. Exposure to Margin Risk

The Trust is exposed to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of its financial instruments will be affected by the 
impairment of financial assets.

The internal procedures require the Trust to manage margin risk in accordance with policies and procedures in place. The Trust 
has designed a Risk Reward Profile to assist the Trust in managing the margin risk.

At the reporting date, the profile of the Trust’s margin was:

Rands Notes Less than 1 
Year

From 1 to 5 
Years

Greater than 
5 Years

Total

2015

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 574 784 041 - 20 000 000 594 784 041

Loans and advances 4 17 317 661 88 774 998 257 324 302 363 416 961

Total assets 592 101 702 88 774 998 277 324 302 958 201 002

Liabilities

Loans and borrowings 11 - - - -

Total liabilities - - - -

Total margin exposure gap 592 101 702 88 774 998 277 324 302 958 201 002

2014

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 607 999 730 - - 607 999 730

Loans and advances 4 98 077 854 118 518 492 7 787 800 224 384 145

Total assets 706 077 584 118 518 492 7 787 800 832 383 875

Liabilities

Loans and borrowings 11 (18 290 341) (40 615 714) (338 525) (59 244 580)

Total liabilities (18 290 341) (40 615 714) (338 525) (59 244 580)

Total margin exposure gap 687 787 243 77 902 778 7 449 275 773 139 295
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGeMeNT (CONT.)
21.4. Operational risks
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, 
technology and infrastructure supporting the Trust’s operations, either internally within the Trust, or externally at the Trust’s 
service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and 
regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behaviour. Operational risks arise from 
all the Trust’s activities.

The Trust’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation 
with achieving its investment objective of generating returns to investors. The primary responsibility for the development and 
implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the Board of Trustees.

This responsibility is supported by the development of overall standards for the management of operational risk, which encompass 
the controls and processes at the service providers and the establishment of service levels with the service providers, in the 
following areas:

• Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and requirements for the 
reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

• Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
• Documentation of controls and procedures;
• Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to 

address the risks identified; 
• Contingency plans;
• Ethical and business standards; and
• Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

The Trustee’s assessment over the adequacy of the controls and processes in place with respect to operational risks is carried 
out via regular discussions and a review of the audited Annual Financial Statements, and reports on internal controls and 
budgets, where available.

21.5. Capital Management
The capital contribution represents capital provided from the KwaZulu-Natal Department of Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs, which is made in terms of the Capital Contribution Agreement. There are no repayment terms and 
this funding is interest free.

The debt service reserve was provided by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government. In terms of the Trust Deed and the Senior 
and Mezzanine Term Facility Agreement, the Trust is required to maintain a debt service reserve that is equal to the amount 
payable to the lenders within the next six months. The debt service reserve was released during the year with the repayment of 
the lenders. 

The general reserve was provided by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government. Amounts received related to the settlement 
subsidy received for the repayment of a previous lender (INCA) on their exit from the fund as well as benefits received as a 
result of the waiver of amounts payable on the acquisition of the net assets of the Fund Management Company. There are no 
repayment terms and this funding is interest free.
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22. FINANCIAL ASSeTS ANd LIABILITIeS
Accounting Classifications and Fair Values
The table below provides reconciliation of the line items in the Trust’s Statement of Financial Position to the categories of 
financial instruments:

Rands
Notes

Financial Assets Other Financial 
Liabilities

Total Carrying 
Amount

2015

Loans and advances 4 363 416 961 - 363 416 961

Cash and cash equivalents 5 594 784 041 - 594 784 041

Trade and other receivables 6 1 565 951 - 1 565 951

Deferred funds 8 - (447 783 660) (447 783 660)

Loans and borrowings 11 - - -

Trade and other payables 12 - (1 799 032) (1 799 032)

959 766 953 (449 582 692) 510 184 261

2014

Loans and advances 4 202 070 813 - 202 070 813

Cash and cash equivalents 5 607 999 730 - 607 999 730

Trade and other receivables 6 1 908 821 - 1 908 821

Deferred funds 8 - (531 792 555) (531 792 555)

Loans and borrowing 11 - (59 244 580) (59 244 580)

Trade and other payables 12 - (6 399 083) (6 399 083)

811 979 364 (597 436 218) 214 543 146

Financial assets and liabilities carrying amounts approximates 
their fair values.

23. COMMITMeNTS
2015 2014

R R

Authorised capital expenditure

Authorised and contracted for - -

Authorised and not yet contracted for - 710 000

- 710 000

24. INCOMe TAx
No provision has been made for taxation for the Trust as the entity is considered a vested entity of the Department of Economic 
Development & Tourism (as the ultimate beneficiary of the Trust is the KwaZulu-Natal Government), which is exempt from 
income tax in terms of Section 10(1)(a) of the Income Tax Act no 58 of 1962 (‘the Act’).
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25. ReLATed PARTIeS
The Trust enters into transactions with related parties in its normal course of business.

The following are the Trust’s key related parties and the transactions entered into during the financial year:

25.1. Department of Economic Development, Tourism & Environmental Affairs
The EDTEA is the ultimate beneficiary of the Trust. 

During the 2015 financial year, a total amount of R140m was provided by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government. The 
amounts received related to the annual budget equity fund allocation. The 2013/2014 budget allocation of R85m was received 
in April 2014 and the 2014/2015 budget allocation of R55m was received in March 2015.

During the 2014 financial year, a total amount of R104m was provided by the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government. Amounts 
received related to the settlement subsidy received for the repayment of a previous lender (INCA) on their exit from the Fund, 
(R48m) as well as benefits received as a result of the waiver of amounts payable on the acquisition of the net assets of the Fund 
Manager (R56m).

25.2. KZN Growth Fund Managers (Soc) Ltd
KZN Growth Fund Managers (Soc) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ithala. It also provided the fund management function 
for the Trust. The fees charged by the Fund Managers during the year amounted to Rnil (2014: R18 079 688). This was in line 
with the Fund Management Agreement. The amounts paid to KZN Growth Fund Managers SOC Limited are shown under note 
16. The balance payable outstanding at year end amounted to Rnil (2014: R419 675).  

25.3. Ithala SOC Limited

Ithala SOC Limited, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ithala and operates as a retail bank operating under an exemption licence 
with the South African Reserve Bank. Funds held on fixed deposit as at 31 March 2015 amounted to R57 925 503 (2014:nil) 
with interest earned during the year totalling R2 788 850 (2014:nil). Ithala SOC Limited further provided intermediary insurance 
advisory services for which insurance payments totalling R166 902 (2014:nil) were paid.  

25.4. Key Management Personnel
The total Trustee’s fees incurred for the year was R1 194 418 (2014: R1 617 201). There was an amount of Rnil (2014: R149 521) 
outstanding in Trustees fees payable at year end. The listing of the trustees is shown under Note 17.1.

The total Investment Committee’s fees incurred for the year was R257 277 (2014: R1 058 870). There was an amount of R125 000 
(2014: R450 480) outstanding in investment committee fees payable at year end. The listing of the investment committee fees 
is shown under Note 17.2. 

The total Audit and Risk Committee’s fees incurred for the year was R167 014 (2014: R338 485). There was an amount of Rnil 
(2014: R6 642) outstanding in Audit and Risk Committee fees payable at year end. The listing of the Audit and Risk Committee 
fees is shown under Note 17.3.

The total HR Committee’s fees incurred for the year was R192 179 (2014: R80 631). There was an amount of Rnil (2014: R4 896) 
outstanding in HR Committee fees payable at year end. The listing of the HR Committee fees is shown under Note 17.4.

A balance of R33 333 included in the staff debtors balance was due from Mr M. Phungula – Legal, Risk and Compliance Office 
as at 31 March 2015. This balance was payable in six equal instalments and was subsequently recovered on 31 May 2015 when 
the employee completed employment. Refer to Note 17.5 for the executive management remuneration.
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